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Statements made in this Form 10-K/A-1 that are not historical facts may constitute forward-looking statements that are subject to risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those discussed. Words such as “expects,” “may,” “will,” “anticipates,” “intends,”
“plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements.

References to “we” means BioTime, Inc. and its subsidiaries unless the context otherwise indicates.

The description or discussion, in this Form 10-K/A-1, of any contract or agreement is a summary only and is qualified in all respects by reference to
the full text of the applicable contract or agreement.

BioTime, Inc. (“we,” “us,” or “our”) is filing this Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A (this “Amendment No. 1”) to amend our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013, originally filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on March 17, 2014, to include
the information required by Items 10 through 14 of Part III of Form 10-K. We previously omitted this information from our Form 10-K in reliance on General
Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K, which permits that information to be incorporated in the Form 10-K by reference from a definitive proxy statement if the
proxy statement is filed no later than 120 days after our fiscal year-end. We are filing this Amendment No. 1 solely to provide the information required in Part
III of Form 10-K because our definitive proxy statement containing this information will not be filed until a later date.  The reference on the cover of the
Form 10-K to the incorporation by reference to portions of our definitive proxy statement into Part III of the Original Form 10-K is hereby deleted.

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Directors

The names and ages of our directors are:

Deborah Andrews, 56, joined our Board of Directors during April 2014.  Ms. Andrews has served as Vice President-Chief Accounting Officer of
STAAR Surgical Company since 2013, and served as STAAR Surgical’s Vice President-Chief Financial Officer from 2005 to 2013, as its Global Controller
from 2001 to 2005, and as its Vice President-International Finance from 1999 to 2001.  Ms. Andrews previously worked as a senior accountant for a major
public accounting firm.  Ms. Andrews holds a B.S. degree in Accounting from California State University at San Bernardino.

Ms. Andrews brings to our Board significant experience in finance, financial reporting, accounting and auditing, and in management as a senior
financial and accounting executive of a public medical device company during a period of significant growth.

Neal C. Bradsher, CFA, 48, joined the Board of Directors during July 2009.  Mr. Bradsher has been President of Broadwood Capital, Inc., a private
investment firm, since 2002.  Mr. Bradsher holds a B.A. degree in economics from Yale College and is a Chartered Financial Analyst.  Mr. Bradsher is also a
director of Questcor Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a biopharmaceutical company focused on the treatment of patients with serious, difficult-to-treat autoimmune and
inflammatory disorders.

1



Mr. Bradsher brings to the Board a wealth of experience in finance, management, and corporate governance attained through his successful
investments in other companies, including companies in the pharmaceutical, medical device, health care services, and health care information systems
sectors.  He has worked with several health care companies to improve their management and governance, and he currently serves as a director of Questcor
Pharmaceuticals, Inc.  Entities that Mr. Bradsher controls have invested in most of BioTime's financing transactions over the last several years.  Mr. Bradsher
is the President of the general partner of Broadwood Partners, LP, currently our largest shareholder.

Stephen C. Farrell, 49, joined the Board of Directors during March 2013.  Mr. Farrell currently serves as Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Convey Health Solutions (formerly known as NationsHealth, Inc.), a healthcare business process outsourcing company headquartered in Sunrise, Florida. 
Convey Health Solutions utilizes both technology and staff to manage end-to-end insurance processes for business clients.  Before joining Convey Health
Solutions in 2011, he served as President of PolyMedica Corporation, a publicly traded provider of diabetes supplies and related services that was acquired in
2007 by Medco Health Solutions.  During his eight year tenure at PolyMedica, Mr. Farrell served as its President, Chief Operating Officer, and as Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Compliance Officer, and Treasurer.  Mr. Farrell previously served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Stream
Global Services, Inc., a business process outsourcing company.  Earlier in his career, Mr. Farrell served as Senior Manager at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. 
Mr. Farrell holds an A.B. from Harvard University, and an M.B.A. from the Darden School at the University of Virginia.  Mr. Farrell currently serves on the
board and is chairman of the Audit Committee of Questcor Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a biopharmaceutical company focused on the treatment of patients with
serious, difficult-to-treat autoimmune and inflammatory disorders.

Mr. Farrell brings to our Board significant experience in finance, financial reporting, accounting and auditing, and in management as a senior
executive of a public healthcare company during a period of significant growth.

Alfred D. Kingsley, 71, joined the Board of Directors and became Chairman of the Board during July 2009.  Mr. Kingsley is the executive
Chairman of five of our subsidiaries.  Mr. Kingsley has been general partner of Greenway Partners, L.P., a private investment firm, and President of Greenbelt
Corp., a business consulting firm, since 1993.  Greenbelt Corp. served as our financial advisor from 1998 until June 30, 2009.  Mr. Kingsley was Senior Vice-
President of Icahn and Company and its affiliated entities for more than 25 years.  Mr. Kingsley is a director of our subsidiary Asterias Biotherapeutics, Inc. 
Mr. Kingsley holds a BS degree in economics from the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania, and a J.D. degree and LLM in taxation from New
York University Law School.

Mr. Kingsley’s long career in corporate finance and mergers and acquisitions includes substantial experience in helping companies to improve their
management and corporate governance, and to restructure their operations in order to add value for shareholders.  Mr. Kingsley developed an intimate
knowledge of our business in his role as our financial advisor before he joined our Board.  Mr. Kingsley has been instrumental in structuring our equity and
debt financings, and in the transition of our business focus into the field of human embryonic stem cell technology, and the business acquisitions that have
helped us expand the scope of our business.  Mr. Kingsley, along with entities that he controls, is currently one of our largest shareholders.
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Pedro Lichtinger, 59, joined the Board of Directors during August 2009.  Mr. Lichtinger served as President, Chief Executive Officer, and a director
of Optimer Pharmaceuticals, Inc., from May 2010 to February 26, 2013.  Mr. Lichtinger previously served as an executive of Pfizer, Inc. from 1995 to 2009,
including as President of Pfizer's Global Primary Care Unit from 2008 to 2009, Area President, Europe from 2006 to 2008, President, Global Animal Health
from 1999 to 2006, and Regional President Europe Animal Health from 1995 to 1999.  Before joining Pfizer, Mr. Lichtinger was an executive of Smith Kline
Beecham, last serving as Senior Vice-President Europe Animal Health from 1987 to 1995.  Mr. Lichtinger holds an MBA degree from the Wharton School of
Business and an Engineering degree from the National University of Mexico.

Mr. Lichtinger brings to our Board more than 20 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry, where he played a key role in the development
of international business for two leading pharmaceutical companies, Pfizer and Smith Kline Beecham.  We believe that Mr. Lichtinger’s experience in the
international pharmaceutical industry will be of great value in our efforts to find and capitalize on opportunities in overseas markets.  Mr. Lichtinger was
responsible for more than $23 billion of revenues by Pfizer in 2008.

David Schlachet, 68, joined our Board of Directors during April 2014.  Mr. Schlachet serves as a director of several public and private Israeli
companies.  Mr. Schlachet served as chairman of Syneron Medical Ltd., an Israeli aesthetic medical device company, from April 2013 to February 2014 and
prior to that, he served as Syneron Medical’s Chief Executive Officer from November 2005 to May 2007, after serving as its Chief Financial Officer
beginning in June 2004.  From November 2008 to November 2012, Mr. Schlachet served as a director of the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange and Chairman of its
Audit Committee.  From 2000 to June 2004 Mr. Schlachet served as Managing Partner of Biocom, a venture capital fund specializing in the life sciences
field.  From 1995 to 2000, Mr. Schlachet served as a Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Strauss Elite Holdings, an Israeli packaged food
group, and from 1997 to 2000 he also served as active Chairman of Elite Industries, an Israeli coffee, confectionary and salty snacks manufacturer.  From
1988 till 1995 Mr. Schlachet served as Vice President of Finance and Administration of the Weizmann Institute of Science, Israel’s premier post-graduate
scientific research institute, and as Chief Executive Officer of its technology transfer company Yeda Research and Development Company, Ltd.  Mr.
Schlachet serves as a director of Syneron Medical Ltd, EzChip Semiconductor Ltd, Taya Investments Ltd (Chairman), Mazor Robotics Ltd and BioCancell
Ltd.  Mr. Schlachet also serves as Chairman of the Board of our subsidiary Cell Cure Neurosciences Ltd.  Mr. Schlachet holds a B.Sc. degree in chemical
engineering and an M.B.A. from the Tel-Aviv University.

Mr. Schlachet brings to our Board many years of experience in management, finance, and investment, including as Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer of Syneron Medical Ltd, as an executive of the Weizmann Institute and its affiliate Yeda Research and Development, and as Chairman
of our subsidiary Cell Cure Neurosciences Ltd.  We believe that Mr. Schlachet’s experience in finance and industry will be of great value in the management
and financing the business of BioTime and our subsidiaries.

Judith Segall, 60, is our Vice President of Administration and Corporate Secretary, and has served on the Board of Directors from 1990 through
1994, and from 1995 through the present date.  She was a co-founder of BioTime in 1990.  Ms. Segall is also the Corporate Secretary and a director of our
subsidiary Asterias Biotherapeutics, Inc.  Ms. Segall received a B.S. in Nutrition and Clinical Dietetics from the University of California at Berkeley in 1989.
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As one of our co-founders, Ms. Segall has served on our Board and as an executive for more than 20 years. During that time, she has developed a
wealth of knowledge concerning our business operations, financial structure, and institutional relationships, particularly our relationships with the
manufacturers and distributors of Hextend®.

Michael D. West, Ph.D., 61, became our Chief Executive Officer during October 2007, and has served on the Board of Directors since 2002.  Dr.
West also serves as President and Chief Executive Officer and is a director of our subsidiary Asterias Biotherapeutics, Inc.  Prior to becoming our Chief
Executive Officer, Dr. West served as Chief Executive Officer, President, and Chief Scientific Officer of Advanced Cell Technology, Inc., a company engaged
in developing human stem cell technology for use in regenerative medicine.  Dr. West also founded Geron Corporation of Menlo Park, California, and from
1990 to 1998 he was a Director and Vice-President, where he initiated and managed programs in telomerase diagnostics, oligonucleotide-based telomerase
inhibition as anti-tumor therapy, and the cloning and use of telomerase in telomerase-mediated therapy wherein telomerase is utilized to immortalize human
cells.  From 1995 to 1998 he organized and managed the research between Geron and its academic collaborators, James Thomson and John Gearhart, that led
to the first isolation of human embryonic stem and human embryonic germ cells.  Dr. West received a B.S. Degree from Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute in
1976, an M.S. Degree in Biology from Andrews University in 1982, and a Ph.D. from Baylor College of Medicine in 1989 concentrating on the biology of
cellular aging.

Dr. West is an internationally renowned pioneer and expert in stem cell research, and has extensive academic and business experience in age-related
degenerative diseases, telomerase molecular biology, and human embryonic stem cell research and development.  Dr. West brings to our Board the proven
ability to conceive of and manage innovative research and development programs that have made scientifically significant discoveries in the field of human
embryonic stem cells, and the ability to build companies focused on the great potential of regenerative medicine.

Audit Committee

The Board of Directors has an Audit Committee, the members of which are Deborah Andrews, Stephen C. Farrell, and Pedro Lichtinger.  Mr. Farrell
is the Chairman of the Committee.  The purpose of the Audit Committee is to recommend the engagement of our independent registered public accountants,
to review their performance and the plan, scope, and results of the audit, and to review and approve the fees we pay to our independent registered public
accountants.  The Audit Committee also will review our accounting and financial reporting procedures and controls, and all transactions between us and our
executive officers, directors, and shareholders who beneficially own 5% or more of our common shares.  The Audit Committee has a written charter that
requires the members of the Audit Committee to be directors who are independent in accordance with Section 803(A) and Section 803(B) of the NYSE MKT
Company Guide and Section 10A-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”).

Our Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Farrell meets the criteria of an “audit committee financial expert” within the meaning of the SEC's
regulations by virtue of his experience as an accountant working for a major accounting firm and as the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer,
President and Chief Financial Officer of a number of companies, both public and private, where he supervised financial and accounting personnel.

A copy of the Audit Committee Charter has been posted on our internet website and can be found at www.biotimeinc.com.
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Executive Officers

Michael D. West, Robert W. Peabody, and William P. Tew are our executive officers.  Alfred D. Kingsley is an executive officer of several of our
subsidiaries but he is not otherwise an executive officer of BioTime.  There are no family relationships among our directors or officers.  Peter S. Garcia served
as our Chief Financial Officer until May 10, 2013, and Lesley A. Stolz, Ph.D., served as our Executive Vice President, Corporate Development during 2013
but she resigned her position effective March 31, 2014.

Robert W. Peabody, 59, is our Senior Vice-President, Chief Operating Officer, and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Peabody also served on an interim
basis as our Chief Financial Officer from September 2010 until October 2011 and then reassumed that office during May 2013.  Mr. Peabody is also the Chief
Financial Officer and a director of our subsidiary Asterias Biotherapeutics, Inc.  Prior to joining BioTime in October 2007, Mr. Peabody served as a Vice-
President of Advanced Cell Technology, Inc., and also served on their board of directors from 1998 to 2006.  Prior to joining ACT, Mr. Peabody spent 14
years as a Regional Controller for Ecolab, Inc., a Fortune 500 specialty chemical manufacturer and service company.  He has also been an audit manager for
Ernst and Young where he was a Certified Public Accountant on the audit staff serving the firm's clients whose shares are publicly traded.  Mr. Peabody
received a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration from the University of Michigan.

William P. Tew, Ph.D., 68, was appointed our Chief Commercial Officer in July 2011 and prior to that was Vice President of Business Development
of BioTime and our subsidiary OrthoCyte Corporation.  Dr. Tew co-founded Glycosan BioSystems in 2006 and served as its President and Chief Executive
Officer until it was acquired by our subsidiary OrthoCyte Corporation during March 2011.  Dr. Tew has extensive experience in life sciences,
biopharmaceuticals, and university technology licensing.  He was on the research and teaching faculty at Johns Hopkins University School of Medicine from
1979 to 1983, and served as Associate Provost and Assistant Dean of Technology Licensing from 2000 to 2004.  In 1980 Dr. Tew founded Chesapeake
Biological Laboratories, where he served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer for almost two decades, developing and manufacturing bulk
pharmaceuticals, parenteral drugs, and medical devices in compliance with FDA and cGMP regulations.  He also oversaw the design, validation, and
operation of sterile filling and packing facilities and implemented reliable ISO quality-management systems.

Item 11.  Executive Compensation

Compensation of Directors

Directors and members of committees of the Board of Directors who are salaried employees of BioTime are entitled to receive compensation as
employees but are not compensated for serving as directors or attending meetings of the Board or committees of the Board.  All directors are entitled to
reimbursements for their out-of-pocket expenses incurred in attending meetings of the Board or committees of the Board.

5



  2013  2014 
Chairman of the Board  $ 80,000  $ 65,000 
Director other than Chairman  $ 15,000  $ 30,000 
Audit Committee Chairman  $ 10,000  $ 20,000 
Audit Committee Member other than Chairman  $ 7,000  $ 10,000 
Compensation Committee Chairman  $ 7,500  $ 15,000 
Compensation Committee Member other than Chairman  $ 5,000  $ 7,500 
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Chairman  $ 7,500  $ 15,000 
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Member other than Chairman  $ 5,000  $ 7,500 
Science & Technology Committee Chairman  $ 20,000  $ 20,000 
Science & Technology Committee Member other than Chairman  $ 5,000  $ 5,000 

The following table shows the annual cash fees paid to our Chairman of the Board, our directors other than the Chairman, and to the directors who
serve on the Audit Committee, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, the Compensation Committee, or the Science & Technology
Committee during 2013 and the fees that will be paid during 2014:

In addition to the annual cash fees, directors and members of certain committees of the Board are entitled to receive fees for attending meetings. 
During 2013, directors received a fee of $1,000 for attending meetings of the Board or certain committees.  During 2014 the fee for Board meetings attended
will increase to $2,000 for meetings attended in person, and will remain $1,000 for meetings attended by telephone conference.  During 2014, members of the
Audit Committee will receive $1,500 for meetings attended in person and $700 for meetings attended by telephone conference, and members of the
Compensation Committee will receive $1,000 for meetings attended in person and $750 for meetings attended by telephone conference.

In addition to cash fees directors, other than the Chairman of the Board, receive an annual grant of options to purchase 20,000 common shares, and
our Chairman receives an annual grant of options to purchase 50,000 common shares, under our Equity Incentive Plan.

The annual fee of cash will be paid, and the stock options granted will vest and become exercisable, in four equal quarterly installments, provided
that the director remains a director on the last day of the applicable quarter.  The options will expire if not exercised five years from the date of grant.

In addition to his compensation as Chairman of our Board, during 2013 Alfred D. Kingsley received $360,000 from our subsidiaries for serving as
Chairman of the Board of the subsidiaries.  That compensation will be $390,000 during 2014.  In addition, Mr. Kingsley receives $1,000 for each meeting of
the Board of Directors of our subsidiary Asterias Biotherapeutics, Inc. (“Asterias”) that he attends.  Mr. Kingsley is also eligible to participate in certain
health insurance and similar benefit plans that are available to employees of BioTime and its subsidiaries.
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BioTime directors who serve as directors of our subsidiaries are also eligible to receive stock options or to purchase restricted stock under the stock
option plans adopted by our subsidiaries.  An award to a BioTime director under a subsidiary plan is approved by both the board of directors of the subsidiary
and by the BioTime Board of Directors or by the Compensation Committee, without the vote of the director receiving the award.  During 2013, Mr. Kingsley
received a grant of 75,000 stock options from Asterias.

The following table summarizes certain information concerning the compensation paid during the past fiscal year to each of the persons who served
as directors during the year ended December 31, 2013 and who were not our employees on the date the compensation was earned.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Name
  

Fees Earned or
Paid in Cash  Option Awards(1) Total

Franklin M. Berger(2)  $ 50,000  $ 134,171(8)  $ 101,151 
Neal C. Bradsher  $ 39,500  $ 55,904  $ 95,404 
Arnold Burns(3)   10,625   -   10,625 
Stephen Farrell  $ 37,750  $ 111,833(12)  $ 149,583 
Alfred D. Kingsley  $ 459,813(4)  $ 246,505(11)  $ 706,318 
Pedro Lichtinger  $ 39,625  $ 55,904  $ 95,529 
Henry L. Nordhoff(5)  $ 28,750  $ 133,909(9)  $ 162,659 
Andrew C. von Eschenbach, M.D.(6)  $ 96,500(7)  $ 78,204(10)  $ 174,704 

(1) During July 2013, our directors who are not salaried employees of BioTime each received an award of stock options entitling them to purchase
20,000 common shares at a fixed price as partial compensation for serving on the Board of Directors for a period of one year, except that Mr.
Kingsley received 50,000 stock options as partial compensation for serving in his capacity as Chairman of the Board.  The options will vest and
become exercisable in equal quarterly installments over a one-year period, but must be reported here at the aggregate grant date fair value, as if all
options were fully vested and exercisable at the date of grant.  We use the Black-Scholes-Merton Pricing Model to compute option fair values. With
respect to these options, we used the following variables: stock price of $4.60, exercise price of $4.79, expected term of 5 years, volatility of
96.087%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of 0.67%.

(2) Mr. Berger resigned from the Board of Directors during March 2014.

(3) Mr. Burns retired from the Board of Directors during May 2013.

(4) During 2013, in addition to $187,000 in director fees, Mr. Kingsley received $270,000 from certain subsidiaries for serving as Chairman of the
subsidiary and $2,813 of employer contributions to his 401(k) plan.

(5) Mr. Nordhoff resigned from the Board of Directors during April 2014.

(6) Dr. von Eschenbach resigned from the Board of Directors during April 2014.

(7) Amount includes $15,000 and $27,750 for serving as a board member of our subsidiaries OncoCyte Corporation and Asterias, respectively.

(8) During May 2013, Mr. Berger received an award of stock options entitling him to purchase 20,000 BioTime common shares upon his appointment to
BioTime’s Board of Directors.  During June 2013, he received an award of stock options entitling him to purchase 20,000 shares of Asterias Series B
common stock upon his appointment to Asterias’ Board of Directors. Mr. Berger resigned from the Board of Directors of Asterias during March
2014.  The assumptions underlying the valuation of the BioTime options are as follows--stock price of $4.20, exercise price of $4.20, expected term
of 5 years, volatility of 86.52%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of 0.83%.  The assumptions underlying the valuation of the Asterias
options are as follows--stock price of $2.41, exercise price of $2.34, expected term of 2.72 years, volatility of 69.99%, and a bond equivalent yield
discount rate of 0.73%.
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(9) During June 2013, Mr. Nordhoff received an award of stock options entitling him to purchase 20,000 BioTime common shares upon his appointment
to BioTime’s Board of Directors.  During October 2013, he received an award of stock options entitling him to purchase 20,000 shares of Asterias
Series B common stock upon his appointment to Asterias’ Board of Directors.  Mr. Nordhoff resigned from the Board of Directors of Asterias during
April 2014.  The assumptions underlying the valuation of the BioTime options are as follows--stock price of $4.16, exercise price of $4.16, expected
term of 5 years, volatility of 86.58%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of 1.13%.  The assumptions underlying the valuation of the Asterias
options are as follows--stock price of $2.40, exercise price of $2.34, expected term of 2.72 years, volatility of 72.22%, and a bond equivalent yield
discount rate of 0.59%.

 (10) During March 2013, Dr. von Eschenbach received an award of stock options entitling him to purchase 20,000 shares of Asterias Series B common
stock upon his appointment to Asterias’ Board of Directors.  Dr. von Eschenbach resigned from the Board of Directors of Asterias during April
2014.  The assumptions underlying the valuation of the Asterias options are as follows--stock price of $2.45, exercise price of $2.34, expected term
of 2.72 years, volatility of 70.5%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of 0.42%.

 (11) During March 2013, Mr. Kingsley received an award of stock options entitling him to purchase 75,000 shares of Asterias Series B common stock. 
During October 2013, Mr. Kingsley received an award of stock options entitling him to purchase 99,750 shares of LifeMap Sciences, Inc. common
stock.  The assumptions underlying the valuation of the Asterias options are as follows--stock price of $2.45, exercise price of $2.34, expected term
of 2.72 years, volatility of 70.5%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of 0.42%. The assumptions underlying the valuation of the LifeMap
Sciences options are as follows--stock price of $1.75, exercise price of $1.75, expected term of 7 years, volatility of 1.0%, and a bond equivalent
yield discount rate of 2.04%.

 (12) During March 2013, Mr. Farrell received an award of stock options entitling him to purchase 20,000 BioTime common shares upon his appointment
to BioTime’s Board of Directors.  The assumptions underlying the valuation of these BioTime options are as follows--stock price of $4.12, exercise
price of $4.12, expected term of 5 years, volatility of 87.38%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of 0.90%.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation in Compensation Decisions

The Board of Directors has a Compensation Committee the current sole member of which is Pedro Lichtinger.  Franklin M. Berger and Arnold I.
Burns also served on the Compensation Committee during 2013.  Mr. Lichtinger qualifies, and Mr. Burns and Mr. Berger qualified, as “independent” in
accordance with Section 803(A) and Section 805(c) of the NYSE MKT Company Guide.  The Compensation Committee will determine or recommend to the
Board of Directors the terms and amount of executive compensation and grants of options to key employees, consultants, and independent contractors. 
Executive officers who also serve on the Board of Directors do not vote on matters pertaining to their own personal compensation.

Compensation Committee Report

The following is the report of the Compensation Committee for the year ended December 31, 2013.  The information contained in this report shall
not be deemed “soliciting material” or otherwise considered “filed” with the SEC, and such information shall not be incorporated by reference into any
future filing under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that BioTime specifically incorporates such information by reference in such
filing.  Arnold I. Burns and Franklin M. Berger served on the Compensation Committee during 2013 but Mr. Burns retired from the Board during May 2013
and Mr. Berger resigned from the Board during March 2014.
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We have reviewed and discussed with management the Compensation Discussion and Analysis in this Amendment to BioTime’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K.  Based on our review and discussion with management, we have recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and
Analysis be included in this Amendment to BioTime’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013.

The Compensation Committee:  Pedro Lichtinger

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Elements of Executive Compensation

Our compensation policies have been influenced by the need to attract and retain executives with the scientific and management expertise to conduct
our research and product development program in a highly competitive industry dominated by larger, more highly capitalized companies. The compensation
we provide our executive officers currently has the following primary components:

 · Base salary;
 · Annual cash bonuses based on corporate and individual performance;
 · Long-term incentives in the form of stock options;
 · Health insurance; and
 · 401(k) plan participation with employer contributions.

In determining compensation for our executive officers, the Compensation Committee considers a variety of factors.  For 2013 compensation, the
most important factors were:

 · BioTime’s and its subsidiaries’ growth and progress in scientific research;
 · Extraordinary performance by an individual during the year;
 · Retention concerns;
 · The executive’s tenure and experience;
 · The executive’s historical compensation;
 · Market data;
 · Our financial position and capital resources; and
 · Fairness.

In reviewing each executive’s overall compensation, the Compensation Committee considers an aggregate view of base salary and bonus
opportunities, previous stock option grants, and the dollar value of benefits and perquisites. Executive compensation is also influenced by the cost of living in
the San Francisco Bay Area. These factors have been balanced against our financial position and capital resources. In evaluating the compensation of
executive officers, the Compensation Committee considers input from the Chief Executive Officer who is most familiar with their performance.
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BioTime is a growing company and our compensation policies are still evolving. In the course of BioTime’s growth and integration of newly
acquired companies, we may implement new compensation plans and policies and modify existing ones. Accordingly, executive compensation paid during
2013 may or may not be reflective of the compensation that will be paid during subsequent years, except to the extent that the executives receive
compensation under employment agreements that continue in effect during those years. In this regard, the Compensation Committee may consider the
implementation of performance based bonus programs under which awards would be based upon the attainment of pre-set quantified bench marks or goals. 
As permitted by the Compensation Committee Charter, the Compensation Committee engaged the services of an independent executive compensation
consulting firm to provide information about comparative compensation offered by peer companies, market survey information, and information about trends
in executive compensation.

Base Salaries

The minimum base salaries of Michael D. West, our Chief Executive Officer, Robert W. Peabody, our Senior Vice President, Chief Operating
Officer, and Chief Financial Officer, and William P. Tew, our Chief Commercial Officer, during 2013 were defined by their respective employment
agreements which were approved by the Board of Directors, without the vote of Dr. West in the case of his employment agreement.  The base salaries for our
executive officers were established based on the scope of their responsibilities and are intended to be competitive with the compensation paid to executives
with comparable qualifications, experience, and responsibilities in similar businesses of comparable size.  A significant portion of BioTime’s business is
conducted by its subsidiaries. The management and oversight of those subsidiaries, some of which are located overseas, is taken into account in determining
base salaries.  Base salaries are reviewed annually and adjusted from time to time to realign salaries with market levels and to reflect the growth of the
company and the increasing responsibilities of the executives.

For 2014, the Compensation Committee supported the recommendation of management to establish an annual raise guideline of 3% as
recommended by the compensation consultant retained by the Compensation Committee.  This will be a pool of money based upon 3% of the current annual
wages, to be distributed among BioTime employees based upon their annual performance assessments.  The actual percentage raise to each executive or other
employee will differ based upon their individual performance with the total increase awarded to all employees being no more than 3% pool amount.

During February 2013, the Compensation Committee reviewed the base salaries of Dr. West, Mr. Peabody, and Dr. Tew which had been set at
$680,315, $405,107, and $285,000 during 2013.  Based on a comparison of their 2013 salaries to salaries paid by competing companies, including companies
located in the San Francisco Bay area, and increased support of BioTime’s subsidiaries, the Compensation Committee determined that, during 2014 Dr.
West’s base salary would remain at $680,315 considering the relationship of his salary to chief executive officers in the company’s peer group and
considering BioTime’s overall performance during 2014.  Mr. Peabody’s base salary for 2014 was set at $430,135, reflecting a 3% raise under the 3% raise
pool.  Dr. Tew’s base salary for 2014 was set at $300,000, reflecting a 3% raise under the 3% raise pool plus a 2.26% merit raise.
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Bonuses

Bonuses may be earned by each executive officer based upon the achievement of personal goals established in the executive’s employment
agreement, or based upon the personal performance of an executive in helping the company or a subsidiary attain its strategic objectives, as determined by the
Compensation Committee.  Because we are still conducting research and development, and have not attained profitability, the Compensation Committee has
not set performance milestones based upon profit levels and return on equity as the basis for incentive compensation.  Instead, the incentive awards have been
tied to the achievement of company strategic goals and personal performance. Personal performance is related to the functional responsibility of each
executive officer. Important milestones that have been considered by the Compensation Committee or the Board of Directors in determining incentive
bonuses or bonus provisions in employment agreements have included (i) procuring additional capital and research grants, (ii) licensing products and
technology, (iii) completing specified research and development goals, (iv) achieving organizational goals such as the acquisition of other businesses and the
integration of those businesses into our organization, and (v) overall performance of the company.

The Compensation Committee recommended that BioTime’s compensation philosophy should put company total cash compensation in the 50th

percentile of the comparator peer group companies reflected in data considered by the Committee.  To achieve this goal, the Compensation Committee
recommended that bonuses be increased over a period of three years and that bonuses be awarded in lieu of merit increases to base salaries during that
period.  External data indicates that although base salaries are aligned with the comparator peer group, bonuses, when paid, have been significantly below the
comparator peer group.  By allocating the bonuses over a period of three years, the financial impact of the adjustment will be aligned with the stage of
development of the company and its financial situation.

The Committee considered executive accomplishments and performance during 2013 for bonus awards, along with financial factors, including our
cash position and commitments.  The Committee recommended that discretionary bonuses for 2013 be awarded to Mr. Peabody and Dr. Tew in the amounts
of $100,000, and $30,000, respectively, which were paid in March 2014.  In addition, contracted bonuses were awarded to Dr. West and Mr. Peabody in the
amounts of $65,000 and $45,000, respectively, the details of which are described below.

Funding for research is critical to our business. Under his employment agreement, Dr. West is entitled to receive an annual bonus equal to the lesser
of (A) $65,000 or (B) the sum of 65% of Consulting Fees and 6.5% of Grant Funds we receive during each fiscal year; provided that (x) we obtained the grant
that is the source of the Grant Funds during the term of his employment, (y) the grant that is the source of the Grant Funds is not a renewal, extension,
modification, or novation of a grant (or a new grant to fund the continuation of a study funded by a prior grant from the same source) obtained by us prior to
his employment, and (z) the grant that is the source of the Grant Funds was not obtained by us substantially through the efforts of any consultant or
independent contractor compensated by us for obtaining the grant. Grant Funds means money actually paid to us during a fiscal year as a research grant by
any federal or state government agency or any not for profit non-government organization, and expressly excludes (1) license fees, (2) royalties, (3)
Consulting Fees, (4) capital contributions to us or any of our subsidiaries, or any joint venture of any kind (regardless of the legal entity through which the
joint venture is conducted) to which we are a party, and (5) any other payments received by us from a business or commercial enterprise for research and
development of products or technology pursuant to a contract or agreement for the commercial development of a product or technology. Consulting Fees
means money we receive under a contract that entitles us to receive a cash fee for providing scientific and technical advice to third parties concerning stem
cells.  During 2013, Dr. West received a bonus of $65,000 based on BioTime’s receipt of Grant Funds.
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Under his employment agreement, Mr. Peabody is entitled to receive an annual bonus equal to the lesser of (A) $45,000 or (B) the sum of 35% of
Consulting Fees and 3.5% of Grant Funds determined on the same basis used to determine the annual bonus under Dr. West’s employment agreement.  During
2013, Mr. Peabody received a bonus of $45,000 based on BioTime’s receipt of Grant Funds.

Stock Option Awards

Stock options are an important part of the compensation packages for BioTime’s employees, directors, and consultants. We strongly believe that
attracting and retaining the services of employees, directors, and consultants depends in great measure upon the ability of BioTime and its subsidiaries to
provide the kind of incentives that are derived from the ownership of stock and stock options, which are offered by competing pharmaceutical development
and bio-technology companies. This is especially true for us and our subsidiaries since the base compensation that we and our subsidiaries offer is often lower
than the compensation packages offered by competing companies. For these reasons, six of our subsidiaries have adopted stock option plans with the approval
of our Board of Directors, including the independent directors. One of our other subsidiaries, Cell Cure Neurosciences Ltd., had already adopted its own stock
option plan before we acquired our interest in that subsidiary.

Our stock options programs are intended to align the long-term interests of executives with the interests of shareholders by offering potential gains if
our stock price increases, and to provide incentives for employees to work towards the long-term success of BioTime and its subsidiaries by using vesting
schedules over several years.  We use a combination of BioTime stock options and subsidiary stock options.  Because of the direct relationship between the
value of a BioTime stock option and the increased market price of our common shares after the grant date, we feel that stock options will continue to be
important to motivate our executive officers and employees to manage BioTime in a manner that is consistent with both the long-term interests of our
shareholders and our business objectives.

We believe that having subsidiaries that focus on particular disease therapies or research products will facilitate the optimization of scientific and
commercial collaborations, thereby improving the probability that a subsidiary company will eventually become an industry leader. We also believe that high-
quality executives are likely to be more attracted to managing subsidiary companies than to heading divisions within a larger company. The organization of
our regenerative medicine business into subsidiaries has also facilitated our ability to obtain financing for our regenerative medicine programs.  We believe
that granting stock options in a subsidiary company provides incentives for executives and other employees to work towards the long-term success of that
subsidiary so that it can grow to become a self-sufficient, “stand alone” company, at which time holders of stock in the subsidiary may realize value for their
subsidiary shares.
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The stock option plans of BioTime and its subsidiaries also permit the sale of restricted stock in lieu of granting stock options. Although we have not
sold restricted stock to executives, we may do so in the future.  The ownership of restricted stock requires the executive to make a current financial
commitment to the company, which we believe may strengthen the executive’s ties to the company, especially in the case of a subsidiary where no public
market exists for its common stock.  The sale of restricted stock may also offer long-term tax advantages to the executives. Our new Equity Incentive Plan
also permits us to award (a) stock appreciation rights through which executives may receive cash awards based upon the excess of the market price of our
common shares over the strike price of the stock appreciation rights granted, and (b) restricted stock units through which an executive may receive common
shares or cash payments upon the vesting of the units and satisfaction of any conditions of the award.  The Committee recommended that BioTime executives
should not receive stock options during 2014 under any of the subsidiary stock option plans.

During February 2013, the Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that annual grants of stock options be made to executive officers and
other employees based upon their professional level in the organization and their annual performance using the following matrix as a guideline:

Position  Number of Option Shares  
   
Chief Executive Officer  200,000  
Senior Executive/Officer  100,000  
Vice President/Senior Director  50,000  
Director/Manager  25,000  
Senior Professional  10,000  
Technical/Administrative  5,000  

Consistent with that recommendation, the Committee recommended, and the Board of Directors has approved, the stock option grants to executive
officers under the BioTime Equity Incentive Plan shown in the following table.

Name Position Number of Option Shares
   
Michael D. West Chief Executive Officer 200,000
Robert W. Peabody Sr. V.P. Chief Operating Officer 100,000
Leslie A. Stolz Executive Vice President, Corporate Development 50,000
William P. Tew Chief Commercial Officer 100,000

Severance and Change of Control Payments

The employment agreements of our executive officers contain provisions entitling them to severance benefits in the event that their employment is
terminated by us or following a “Change of Control” of BioTime.

If we terminate Dr. West’s or Mr. Peabody’s employment without “cause” as defined in their respective employment agreements the terminated
executive will be entitled to severance benefits, consisting of payment of six months base salary, and 50% of his then unvested BioTime stock options will
vest.  However, if a termination of the executive’s employment without “cause” occurs within twelve months following a “Change of Control,” he will be
entitled to twelve months base salary, and 100% of his then unvested BioTime options will vest.
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If we terminate Dr. Tew’s employment without “cause” as defined in his employment agreement, he will be entitled to severance benefits consisting
of payment of six months base salary which may be paid in a lump sum or, at the election of BioTime, in installments consistent with the payment of his
salary while employed by BioTime.

In order to receive the severance benefits, the executive must execute a general release of all claims against BioTime and must return all BioTime
property in the executive’s possession.

“Change of Control” means (A) the acquisition of our voting securities by a person or an Affiliated Group entitling the holder to elect a majority of
our directors; provided, that an increase in the amount of voting securities held by a person or Affiliated Group who on the date of the Employment
Agreement beneficially owned (as defined in Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the regulations thereunder) more than
10% of our voting securities shall not constitute a Change of Control; and provided, further, that an acquisition of voting securities by one or more persons
acting as an underwriter in connection with a sale or distribution of voting securities shall not constitute a Change of Control, (B) the sale of all or
substantially all of our assets; or (C) a merger or consolidation in which we merge or consolidate into another corporation or entity in which our shareholders
immediately before the merger or consolidation do not own, in the aggregate, voting securities of the surviving corporation or entity (or the ultimate parent of
the surviving corporation or entity) entitling them, in the aggregate (and without regard to whether they constitute an Affiliated Group) to elect a majority of
the directors or persons holding similar powers of the surviving corporation or entity (or the ultimate parent of the surviving corporation or entity).  A Change
of Control shall not be deemed to have occurred if all of the persons acquiring our voting securities or assets, or merging or consolidating with us, are one or
more of our direct or indirect subsidiaries or parent corporations.  "Affiliated Group" means (A) a person and one or more other persons in control of,
controlled by, or under common control with, such person; and (B) two or more persons who, by written agreement among them, act in concert to acquire
voting securities entitling them to elect a majority of our directors.  “Person” includes both people and entities.

The following tables show certain information relating to the compensation of our Chief Executive Officer and our Senior Vice-President, Chief
Operating Officer, and Chief Financial Officer, our Chief Commercial Officer, and our former Chief Financial Officer and former Executive Vice President,
Corporate Development who were our only other executive officers whose compensation exceeded $100,000 during 2013, who are collectively referred to as
the “Named Executive Officers.”
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE
 

Name and principal
position  Year   Salary   Bonus   

Option
Awards(1)   

All other
compensation   Total  

            
Michael D. West  2013   $ 680,315  $ 65,000(2)  $ 851,574(11)  $ 37,750(4)  $ 1,634,639 
Chief Executive Officer  2012   $ 660,500  $ 100,000(2)       $ 24,500(5)  $ 785,000 

  2011   $ 560,500  $ 266,000(2)  $ 10,664(3)   $ 19,038(4)  $ 856,202 
                           

Robert W. Peabody  2013   $ 405,107  $ 145,000(2)  $ 521,500(12)  $ 11,984(7)  $ 1,083,591 
Senior Vice-President,  2012   $ 386,900  $ 45,000(2)       $ 12,500(7)  $ 444,400 
Chief Operating Officer, and
Chief Financial Officer(5)  2011   $ 336,900  $ 156,000(2)

 
 $ 5,332(6)

 
 $ 12,467(7)

 
 $ 510,699 

                           
Peter S. Garcia  2013   $ 154,695  $ -   $ 520,817(13)  $ 12,735(7)  $ 688,247 
Chief Financial Officer(8)  2012   $ 324,000  $ 100,000(2)       $ 12,500(7)  $ 436,500 

  2011   $ 81,000  $ 6,000(2)  $ 703,204(8)   $ 3,475(7)  $ 793,679 
                           

Leslie A. Stolz  2013   $ 104,183  $ -   $ 591,278(9)   $ -   $ 695,461 
Executive Vice President,
Corporate Development(9)           

  
   

  
   

  
    

                           
William P. Tew  2013   $ 285,000  $ 30,000(2)  $ 343,285(14)  $ 12,750(7)  $ 671,035 
Chief Commercial Officer(10)  2012   $ 237,500  $ 20,000(2)       $ 11,146(7)  $ 268,646 

  2011   $ 145,000  $ 26,000(2)  $ 177,078(10)  $ 7,300(7)  $ 355,378 
 

(1) The options must be reported here at the aggregate grant date fair value, as if all options were fully vested and exercisable at the date of grant.  We
use the Black-Scholes-Merton Pricing Model to compute option fair values.

(2) As a result of BioTime receiving a certain research grant, Dr. West and Mr. Peabody earned bonuses of $65,000 and $45,000, respectively, during
2013, 2012, and 2011 under the terms of their employment agreements.  For 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively, the following annual discretionary
bonuses were awarded to the executives named in the table:  Dr. West $35,000 for 2012 and $200,000 for 2011; Mr. Peabody $100,000 for 2013 and
$100,000 for 2011; Mr. Garcia $100,000 for 2012 and $5,000 for 2011; and Dr. Tew $30,000 for 2013, $20,000 for 2012 and $25,000 for 2011.  An
annual bonus may be awarded to an executive officer based upon the performance of the executive, as determined by the Board of Directors upon
recommendation of the Compensation Committee.  A supplemental discretionary bonus in the amount of $10,000 was awarded to Mr. Peabody in
March 2011.  As part of company-wide bonus awards, Dr. West, Mr. Peabody, Mr. Garcia, and Dr. Tew also each received $1,000 in 2011.

(3) During March 2011, Dr. West received 625,000 stock options from LifeMap Sciences, Inc.  These options will vest and become exercisable in equal
monthly installments over a 42 month period, but must be reported here at the aggregate grant date fair value, as if all options were fully vested and
exercisable at the date of grant.  We used the following variables to compute the option fair values: stock price of $0.08333, exercise price of
$0.08333, expected term of 7 years, volatility of 1.0%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of 3.3%.

(4) Dr. West received other compensation that included $25,000 in 2013 as a director of LifeMap Sciences, Inc. and a $1,000 per month car allowance in
2012 and 2011 and employer contributions of $12,750, $12,500, and $7,038, to his 401(k) plan, during 2013, 2012, and respectively.

(5) Mr. Peabody served as our Chief Financial Officer on an interim basis from September 2010 to October 2011 and assumed that office again during
May 2013 after Peter Garcia left the company.

(6) During March 2011, Mr. Peabody received 321,500 stock options from LifeMap Sciences, Inc.  These options will vest and become exercisable in
equal monthly installments over a 42 month period, but must be reported here at the aggregate grant date fair value, as if all options were fully vested
and exercisable at the date of grant.  We used the following variables to compute the option fair values: stock price of $0.08333, exercise price of
$0.08333, expected term of 7 years, volatility of 1.0%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of 3.3%.

(7) Other compensation to Mr. Peabody during 2013, 2012, and 2011, and to Mr. Garcia and Dr. Tew during 2013, 2012 and 2011 consist entirely of
employer contributions to their 401(k) plans.
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(8) Mr. Garcia served as our Chief Financial Officer from October 2011 to May 10, 2013.  During 2011, Mr. Garcia received stock option awards under
our 2002 Stock Option Plan and the stock option plans of certain of our subsidiaries as follows: 200,000 options from BioTime; 50,000 options from
OncoCyte Corporation; 50,000 options from OrthoCyte Corporation; and 50,000 options from ReCyte Therapeutics, Inc.  The assumptions
underlying the valuation of these stock options are as follows: BioTime--stock price of $4.17, exercise price of $4.17, expected term of 7 years,
volatility of 106.31%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of 1.33%; OncoCyte Corporation--stock price of $0.08, exercise price of $1.00,
expected term of 7 years, volatility of 1.0%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of 1.55%; OrthoCyte Corporation--stock price of $0.05,
exercise price of $0.08, expected term of 7 years, volatility of 1.0%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of 1.33%; ReCyte Therapeutics, Inc.--
stock price of $0.09, exercise price of $2.05, expected term of 7 years, volatility of 1.0%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of 1.33%.  Those
options were forfeited following Mr. Garcia’s resignation in May 2013.

(9) Dr. Stolz served as our Executive Vice President, Corporate Development until March 31, 2014.  Dr. Stolz received stock option awards entitling her
to purchase 200,000 options under the BioTime Equity Incentive Plan upon hire on August 15, 2013.  These options were to vest and become
exercisable in equal monthly installments over a 48 month period, but must be reported here at the aggregate grant date fair value, as if all options
were fully vested and exercisable at the date of grant.  We used the following variables to compute the option fair values: stock price of $3.69,
exercise price of $3.69, expected term of 7 years, volatility of 93.79%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of 2.18%.  Dr. Stolz forfeited
170,834 and had 29,166 options vested as of March 31, 2014.  The vested option shall be deemed forfeited if they are not exercised within three
months after the termination date of her employment.

 
(10) Dr. Tew became the Vice President of Business Development of OrthoCyte Corporation in March 2011 and was subsequently promoted to Chief

Commercial Officer of BioTime in June 2011.  He received stock option awards entitling him to purchase 25,000 options from BioTime and 200,000
options from OrthoCyte Corporation in March 2011.  The assumptions underlying the valuation of the 25,000 BioTime options are as follows--stock
price of $7.56, exercise price of $7.47, expected term of 7 years, volatility of 105.31%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of 2.72%. 
OrthoCyte Corporation options were subsequently canceled and BioTime granted him 3,850 additional BioTime options in October 2011.  The
assumptions underlying the valuation of these BioTime options are as follows--stock price of $4.17, exercise price of $4.22, expected term of 7
years, volatility of 106.27%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of 1.35%.

 
(11) During February 2013, Dr. West received stock option awards entitling him to purchase 200,000 options under the BioTime Equity Incentive Plan. 

These options will vest and become exercisable in equal monthly installments over a 48 month period, but must be reported here at the aggregate
grant date fair value, as if all options were fully vested and exercisable at the date of grant.  We used the following variables to compute the option
fair values: stock price of $4.22, exercise price of $4.22, expected term of 7 years, volatility of 97.79%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of
1.38%.  During March 2013, Dr. West received 100,000 options from Asterias.  We used the following variables to compute the value of the Asterias
options: stock price of $2.45, exercise price of $2.34, expected term of 4.18 years, volatility of 76.16%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of
0.66%.  During October 2013, Dr. West received 99,140 options from LifeMap Sciences, Inc.  We used the following variables to compute the value
of the LifeMap Sciences options: stock price of $1.75, exercise price of $1.75, expected term of 7 years, volatility of 1.0%, and a bond equivalent
yield discount rate of 2.04%.

 
(12) During February 2013, Mr. Peabody received 100,000 options under the BioTime Equity Incentive Plan.  These options will vest and become

exercisable in equal monthly installments over a 48 month period, but must be reported here at the aggregate grant date fair value, as if all options
were fully vested and exercisable at the date of grant.  We used the following variables to compute the value of those BioTime options: stock price of
$4.22, exercise price of $4.22, expected term of 7 years, volatility of 97.79%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of 1.38%.  During June 2013,
Mr. Peabody received 125,000 options from Asterias.  We used the following variables to compute the value of those Asterias options: stock price of
$2.41, exercise price of $2.34, expected term of 4.18 years, volatility of 71.61%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of 1.11%.  During
October 2013, Mr. Peabody received 49,750 options from LifeMap Sciences, Inc..  We used the following variables to compute the value of the
LifeMap Sciences options: stock price of $1.75, exercise price of $1.75, expected term of 7 years, volatility of 1.0%, and a bond equivalent yield
discount rate of 2.04%.

16



(13) During February 2013, Mr. Garcia received stock option awards entitling him to purchase 100,000 options under the BioTime Equity Incentive Plan. 
These options will vest and become exercisable in equal monthly installments over a 48 month period, but must be reported here at the aggregate
grant date fair value, as if all options were fully vested and exercisable at the date of grant.  We used the following variables to compute the option
fair values: stock price of $4.22, exercise price of $4.22, expected term of 7 years, volatility of 97.79%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of
1.38%. During March 2013, Mr. Garcia received 120,000 options from Asterias. We used the following variables to compute the value of the
Asterias options: stock price of $2.45, exercise price of $2.34, expected term of 4.18 years, volatility of 76.16%, and a bond equivalent yield
discount rate of 0.66%. All of the options granted to Mr. Garcia were forfeited following his resignation in May 2013.

 
(14) During February 2013, Dr. Tew received stock option awards entitling them to purchase 100,000 options under the BioTime Equity Incentive Plan. 

These options will vest and become exercisable in equal monthly installments over a 48 month period, but must be reported here at the aggregate
grant date fair value, as if all options were fully vested and exercisable at the date of grant.  We used the following variables to compute the option
fair values: stock price of $4.22, exercise price of $4.22, expected term of 7 years, volatility of 97.79%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of
1.38%.  All of the options granted to Mr. Garcia were forfeited following Mr. Garcia’s resignation in May 2013.

 
Grants of Plan-Based Awards
 

The following table sets forth information regarding stock options granted by BioTime under the Equity Incentive Plan, and options granted by our
subsidiaries under their stock option plans (as footnoted below) to our Named Executive Officers during the year ended December 31, 2013.

GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS

Name Grant Date  

All Other
Option Awards:

Number of
Securities

Underlying
Options (#)(1)  

Exercise or
Base Price of

Option Awards
($/share)(2)  

Grant Date
Fair Value of

Stock and
Option Awards

($)(3)
Michael D. West 02/20/13   200,000(4)  $ 4.22  $ 686,569 
 03/10/13   100,000(5)  $ 2.34  $ 142,026 
 10/01/13   99,750(7)  $ 1.75  $ 22,979 
              
Robert W. Peabody 02/20/13   100,000(4)  $ 4.22  $ 343,285 
 06/24/13   125,000(6)  $ 2.34  $ 166,685 
 10/01/13   99,750(7)  $ 1.75  $ 11,531 
              
Peter S. Garcia(8) 02/20/13   100,000(4)  $ 4.22  $ 343,285 
 03/10/13   125,000(5)  $ 2.34  $ 177,532 
              
Leslie Stolz(9) 08/15/13   200,000(9)  $ 3.69  $ 591,278 
              
William P. Tew 02/20/13   100,000(4)  $ 4.22  $ 343,285 
 

 
 (1) All of the stock options have seven-year terms.  Each of the subsidiary stock options reported in this table vests in equal monthly installments over

four years from the grant date, except that the LifeMap Sciences stock options vest over 42 months from the date of grant.

 (2) Fair market values of subsidiary stock were determined by the respective boards of directors of the subsidiaries based on independent valuations or
other factors.

 (3) The options must be reported here at the aggregate grant date fair value, as if all options were fully vested and exercisable at the date of grant. We
use the Black-Scholes-Merton Pricing Model to compute option fair values.

 
(4) Options granted under BioTime, Inc. Equity Incentive Plan. With respect to these options, we used the following Black-Scholes-Merton valuation

variables to compute the option values: stock price of $4.22, exercise price of $4.22, expected term of 7 years, volatility of 97.79%, and a bond
equivalent yield discount rate of 1.38%.

 

 
(5) Options granted under Asterias Biotherapeutics, Inc. Equity Incentive Plan.  With respect to these options, we used the following Black-Scholes-

Merton valuation variables to compute the option values: stock price of $2.45, exercise price of $2.34, expected term of 4.18 years, volatility of
76.16%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of 0.66%.

 
(6) Options granted under Asterias Biotherapeutics, Inc. Equity Incentive Plan.  With respect to these options, we used the following Black-Scholes-

Merton valuation variables to compute the option values: stock price of $2.41, exercise price of $2.34, expected term of 4.18 years, volatility of
71.61%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of 1.105%.

 
(7) Options granted under LifeMap Sciences, Inc. 2011 Stock Option Plan.  With respect to these options, we used the following Black-Scholes-Merton

valuation variables to compute the option values: stock price of $1.75, exercise price of $1.75, expected term of 7 years, volatility of 1.0%, and a
bond equivalent yield discount rate of 2.04%.

 (8) Mr. Garcia served as our Chief Financial Officer from October 2011 to May 10, 2013.  All of the options granted to Mr. Garcia were forfeited
following his resignation in May 2013.

 (9) Dr. Stolz served as our Executive Vice President, Corporate Development until March 31, 2014.  She received 200,000 options under the BioTime
Equity Incentive Plan upon hire on August 15, 2013.  We used the following Black-Scholes-Merton valuation variables to compute the option fair



values: stock price of $3.69, exercise price of $3.69, expected term of 7 years, volatility of 93.79%, and a bond equivalent yield discount rate of
2.18%.  Dr. Stolz forfeited 170,834 and had 29,166 options vested as of March 31, 2014.  The vested options shall be deemed forfeited if they are not
exercised within three months after the termination date of her employment.

Stock Options Outstanding at Year End

The following table summarizes certain information concerning BioTime stock options and options to purchase common stock or ordinary shares in
certain BioTime subsidiaries granted under the subsidiary stock option plans (as footnoted below), and held as of December 31, 2013 by our Named
Executive Officers.
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END

BioTime and Subsidiary Option Awards
 

Name  
Stock Option
Plan Name  

Number of
Securities

Underlying
Unexercised

Options
Exercisable   

Number of
Securities

Underlying
Unexercised

Options
Unexercisable   

Option
Exercise

Price  

Option
Expiration

Date
                    

Michael D. West  
BioTime

Equity Incentive Plan   50,000
(14)   150,000  $ 4.22 February 19, 2020

                              

  
BioTime

2002 Stock Option Plan   1,470,400
(1)    -  $ 0.50 October 9, 2014

                       

  
OncoCyte Corporation
2011 Stock Option Plan   375,000

(2)    125,000  $ 0.67 December 28, 2020
                              

  
OrthoCyte Corporation
2010 Stock Option Plan   375,000

(3)    125,000  $ 0.05 December 28, 2020
                              

  
ReCyte Therapeutics, Inc.
2011 Stock Option Plan   375,000

(4)    125,000  $ 2.05 December 28, 2020
                              

  
BioTime Asia, Limited
2011 Stock Option Plan   150

(5)    50  $ 0.01 December 28, 2020
                              

  
LifeMap Sciences, Inc.
2011 Stock Option Plan   4,740

(6)    94,420  $ 1.75 September 30, 2020
                              

  
LifeMap Sciences, Inc.
2011 Stock Option Plan   35,075

(6)    9,567  $ 0.50 March 28, 2018
                              

  
Asterias Biotherapeutics, Inc.

Equity Incentive Plan   18,750
(16)   81,250  $ 2.34 March 9, 2020

                              

Robert W. Peabody  
BioTime

Equity Incentive Plan   25,000
(15)   75,00  $ 4.22 February 19, 2020

                              

  
BioTime

2002 Stock Option Plan   500,000
(1)    -  $ 0.50 October 9, 2014

                      

  
OncoCyte Corporation
2011 Stock Option Plan   187,500

(7)    62,500  $ 0.67 December 28, 2020
                              

  
OrthoCyte Corporation
2010 Stock Option Plan   187,500

(8)    62,500  $ 0.05 December 28, 2020
                              

  
ReCyte Therapeutics, Inc.
2011 Stock Option Plan   187,500

(9)    62,500  $ 2.05 December 28, 2020
                              

  
BioTime Asia, Limited
2011 Stock Option Plan   75

(10)   25  $ 0.01 December 28, 2020
                              

  
LifeMap Sciences, Inc.
2011 Stock Option Plan   2,369

(11)   47,381  $ 1.75 September 30, 2020
                              

  
LifeMap Sciences, Inc.
2011 Stock Option Plan   17,537

(11)   4,784  $ 0.50 March 28, 2018
                              

  
Asterias Biotherapeutics, Inc.

Equity Incentive Plan   15,625
(17)   109,375  $ 2.34 June 23, 2020

                              

Leslie A. Stolz  
BioTime

Equity Incentive Plan   25,000
(12)   75,000  $ 4.22 February 19, 2020

                       

William P. Tew  
BioTime

Equity Incentive Plan   25,000
(13)   75,000  $ 4.22 February 19, 2020

                       

  
BioTime

2002 Stock Option Plan   17,187
(13)   7,813  $ 7.47 March 20, 2018

                              

  
BioTime

2002 Stock Option Plan   2,085
(13)   1,765  $ 4.17 October 3, 2018



                              

  
OncoCyte Corporation
2011 Stock Option Plan   5,000

(13)   5,000  $ 1.00 November 30, 2018
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(1) These options were granted upon his employment with BioTime and were fully vested and exercisable as of December 31, 2013.

(2) These options become exercisable in equal monthly installments from the date of grant over a four year period provided that Dr. West remains an
employee or director of OncoCyte or BioTime.

(3) These options become exercisable in equal monthly installments from the date of grant over a four year period provided that Dr. West remains an
employee or director of OrthoCyte or BioTime.

 
(4) These options become exercisable in equal monthly installments from the date of grant over a four year period provided that Dr. West remains an

employee or director of ReCyte Therapeutics or BioTime.

(5) These options become exercisable in equal monthly installments from the date of grant over a four year period provided that Dr. West remains an
employee or director of BioTime Asia or BioTime.

(6) These options become exercisable in equal monthly installments from the date of grant over a forty-two month period provided that Dr. West
remains an employee or director of LifeMap Sciences, Inc. or BioTime.  The LifeMap Sciences stock option plan originally authorized the sale of up
to 8,000,000 shares of its common stock through the exercise of stock options or under restricted stock purchase agreements.  During 2012, the
LifeMap Sciences stock option plan was amended to reflect a 1 for 4 reverse stock split and a change in the plan that resulted in the reduction of
certain options granted.  As a result, the total number of shares that may be issued under the plan was adjusted to 1,842,269.  Dr. West was originally
granted 625,000 options under the LifeMap Sciences stock option plan.  However as a result of the 1 for 4 reverse stock split and the change in the
plan aforementioned, the 625,000 options originally granted at an exercise price of $0.08333 per share were adjusted to 44,642 options at an exercise
price of $0.50 per share.

(7) These options become exercisable in equal monthly installments from the date of grant over a four year period provided that Mr. Peabody remains an
employee or director of OncoCyte or BioTime.

(8) These options become exercisable in equal monthly installments from the date of grant over a four year period provided that Mr. Peabody remains an
employee or director of OrthoCyte or BioTime.

(9) These options become exercisable in equal monthly installments from the date of grant over a four year period provided that Mr. Peabody remains an
employee or director of ReCyte Therapeutics or BioTime.

 
(10) These options become exercisable in equal monthly installments from the date of grant over a four year period provided that Mr. Peabody remains an

employee or director of BioTime Asia or BioTime.
 

(11) These options become exercisable in equal monthly installments from the date of grant over a forty-two month period provided that Mr. Peabody
remains an employee or director of LifeMap Sciences, Inc. or BioTime.  The LifeMap Sciences stock option plan originally authorized the sale of up
to 8,000,000 shares of its common stock through the exercise of stock options or under restricted stock purchase agreements.  During 2012, the
LifeMap Sciences stock option plan was amended to reflect a 1 for 4 reverse stock split and a change in the plan that resulted in the reduction of
certain options granted.  As a result, the total number of shares that may be issued under the plan was adjusted to 1,842,269.  Mr. Peabody was
originally granted 312,500 options under the LifeMap Sciences stock option plan.  However as a result of the 1 for 4 reverse stock split and the
change in the plan aforementioned, the 312,500 options originally granted at an exercise price of $0.08333 per share were adjusted to 22,321 options
at an exercise price of $0.50 per share.  During October 2013 Mr. Peabody was granted an additional 49,750 options.

 
(12) Dr. Stolz’s unvested options were forfeited upon her resignation on March 31, 2014, and her vested options are subject to forfeiture to the extent not

exercised within three months after the termination of her employment.
 

(13) These options become exercisable in equal monthly installments from the date of grant over a four year period during the term of Dr. Tew’s
employment.

 
(14) These options become exercisable in equal monthly installments from the date of grant over a four year period provided that Dr. West remains an

employee or director of BioTime.
 

(15) These options become exercisable in equal monthly installments from the date of grant over a four year period provided that Mr. Peabody remains an
employee or director of BioTime.

 
(16) These options become exercisable in equal monthly installments from the date of grant over a four year period provided that Dr. West remains an

employee or director of Asterias or BioTime.
 

(17) These options become exercisable in equal monthly installments from the date of grant over a four year period provided that Mr. Peabody remains an
employee or director of Asterias or BioTime.
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Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control

As discussed above, under the terms of their employment agreements, certain Named Executive Officers may receive severance payments upon
termination of their employment without “cause” or following a “Change of Control” of BioTime.  The table below summarizes the potential severance
payments under the individual employment agreements for those executive officers if a termination without “cause” or a Change of Control event occurred on
December 31, 2013.
 

Officer and Position  Benefit  

Before
Change

in Control
Termination

w/o
Cause (1)   

After
Change

of Control
Termination

w/o
Cause  

Michael D. West, Chief Executive Officer  Cash Payment(1)  $ 340,158  $ 680,315 
  Option Vesting(2)   -   - 
           

Robert W. Peabody, Senior Vice President  Cash Payment(1)  $ 208,804  $ 417,607 
Chief Operating Officer, and Chief Financial Officer  Option Vesting(2)   -   - 

           
Leslie A. Stolz  Cash Payment(1)  $ 68,750  $ 137,500 
Executive Vice President, Corporate Development  Option Vesting(2)         

           
William P. Tew, Chief Commercial Officer  Cash Payment(1)  $ 142,500  $ 285,000 

  Option Vesting(2)   -   - 
 

(1) Amounts represent lump sum severance payments that could be paid to the executive officer under such executive’s employment agreement as of
December 31, 2013.

(2) Amounts represent an estimate of the intrinsic value of options that would become fully vested and exercisable based on a market value of $3.60 per
common share as of December 31, 2013.  The estimated values for Dr. West and Mr. Peabody are zero as their options were fully vested.  The
estimated values for Dr. Stolz and Dr. Tew are zero as the exercise prices of their options are greater than the closing stock price on December 31,
2013.

Other Compensation Plans

We do not have any pension plans, defined benefit plans, or non-qualified deferred compensation plans.  We do make contributions to 401(k) plans
for participating executive officers and other employees.

Consideration of Shareholder Advisory Vote on Executive Compensation.

The results of our advisory vote on executive compensation at our 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders showed that 99% of the shares that voted
approved the compensation we provided to our “Named Executive Officers” during 2012.  Our Compensation Committee is pleased that our shareholders
have express satisfaction with the Committee’s compensation decisions.  The compensation policies applied by the Compensation Committee in determining
the compensation of our executive officers during 2013 were measure consistent with those approved by our shareholders’ advisory vote last year. Two new
policies were implemented by the Compensation Committee for 2014.  The Compensation Committee supported the recommendation of management to
establish an annual raise guideline of 3% as recommended by the compensation consultant retained by the Compensation Committee.  This will be a pool of
money based upon 3% of the current annual wages, to be distributed among BioTime employees based upon their annual performance assessments.  The
actual percentage raise to each executive or other employee will differ based upon their individual performance with the total increase awarded to all
employees being no more than 3% pool amount.  Also, the Compensation Committee recommended that BioTime’s compensation philosophy should put
company total cash compensation in the 50th percentile of the comparator peer group companies reflected in data considered by the Committee.  To achieve
this goal, the Compensation Committee recommended that bonuses be increased over a period of three years and that bonuses be awarded in lieu of merit
increases to base salaries during that period.  External data indicates that although base salaries are aligned with the comparator peer group, bonuses, when
paid, have been significantly below the comparator peer group.  By allocating the bonuses over a period of three years, the financial impact of the adjustment
will be aligned with the stage of development of the company and its financial situation.
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Risk Considerations and Recoupment Policies

The Compensation Committee considers, in establishing and reviewing the executive compensation program, whether the program encourages
unnecessary or excessive risk taking.  Our executive compensation arrangements include a fixed salary that provides a steady income so that executives do
not feel pressured to focus exclusively on stock price performance or short term financial targets to the detriment of our long-term operational and strategic
objectives.  We supplement fixed salaries with discretionary bonus awards based on the executive’s performance as well as the performance of BioTime and
its subsidiaries, and bonus awards based on BioTime’s receipt of research grant funding.  The stock options that we have granted to our executive officers
under the Equity Incentive Plan vest over four years, assuring that the executives take a long-term perspective in viewing their equity ownership.

Because BioTime has not adopted compensation plans, or made incentive awards, based on quantified financial performance measures, we have not
adopted specific policies regarding the adjustment or recovery of awards or payments if the relevant performance measures are restated or otherwise adjusted
in a manner that would reduce the size of an award or payment.  We may adopt such policies, however, if we adopt incentive compensation plans or grant
incentive bonuses based on financial performance measures.

Tax Considerations

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code places a $1 million limit on the amount of compensation that a company can deduct in any one year for
compensation paid to its chief executive officer and the three most highly-compensated executive officers employed by the company at the end of the year,
other than the company’s chief financial officer.  The $1 million deduction limit does not apply to compensation that is performance-based and provided
under a shareholder-approved plan.  The Compensation Committee has never awarded cash compensation, in the form of salary and bonuses, in excess of the
$1 million limit.  BioTime’s stock option awards are designed to qualify for tax deductibility.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, we may elect to pay
compensation to executive officers that may not be fully deductible if we believe that is necessary to attract, retain and reward high-performing executives.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.
 

PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

The following table sets forth information as of April 14, 2014 concerning beneficial ownership of common shares by each shareholder known by us
to be the beneficial owner of 5% or more of our common shares.  Information concerning certain beneficial owners of more than 5% of the common shares is
based upon information disclosed by such owners in their reports on Schedule 13D or Schedule 13G.
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Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

  Number of Shares   Percent of Total  
     
Neal C. Bradsher (1)   9,960,170   16.8%
Broadwood Partners, L.P.         
Broadwood Capital, Inc.         
724 Fifth Avenue, 9th Floor         
New York, NY 10019         
         
Alfred D. Kingsley (2)   8,828,311   14.9%
Greenbelt Corp.         
Greenway Partners, L.P.         
150 E. 57th Street         
New York, NY 10022         
         
George Karfunkel   4,997,217   8.5%
126 East 56th St.         
New York, NY 10022         
 

 
(1) Includes 9,822,262 common shares owned by Broadwood Partners, L.P., 42,908 common shares owned by Neal C. Bradsher, and 95,000 common

shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of certain stock options that are presently exercisable or may become exercisable within 60 days. 
Excludes 5,000 common shares that may be acquired by Mr. Bradsher upon the exercise of certain stock options that are not presently exercisable
and that will not become exercisable within 60 days.  Broadwood Capital, Inc. is the general partner of Broadwood Partners, L.P., and Mr. Bradsher
is the President of Broadwood Capital, Inc.  Mr. Bradsher and Broadwood Capital, Inc. may be deemed to beneficially own the shares that
Broadwood Partners, L.P. owns.

(2) Includes 1,627,405 common shares presently owned by Greenbelt Corp, 375,351 common shares owned by Greenway Partners, L.P., 6,588,055
shares owned solely by Alfred D. Kingsley, and 237,500 common shares that may be acquired by Mr. Kingsley upon the exercise of certain stock
options that are presently exercisable or may become exercisable within 60 days.  Excludes 12,500 common shares that may be acquired by Mr.
Kingsley upon the exercise of certain stock options that are not presently exercisable and that will not become exercisable within 60 days.  Mr.
Kingsley controls Greenbelt Corp. and Greenway Partners, L.P. and may be deemed to beneficially own the shares that Greenbelt Corp. and
Greenway Partners, L.P. own.
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Security Ownership of Management

The following table sets forth information as of April 14, 2014 concerning beneficial ownership of common shares by each member of the Board of
Directors, certain executive officers, and all officers and directors as a group.

  Number of Shares   
Percent
of Total  

     
Neal C. Bradsher (1)   9,960,170   16.8%
         
Alfred D. Kingsley (2)   8,828,311   14.9%
         
Michael D. West (3)   1,659,166   2.8%
         
Judith Segall (4)   614,436   1.0%
         
Robert W. Peabody (5)   544,983   * 
         
William P. Tew (6)   124,453   * 
         
Pedro Lichtinger (7)   221,250   * 
         
Stephen C. Farrell (8)   50,400   * 
         
Deborah Andrews (9)   -   * 
         
David Schlachet (10)   -   * 
         
All officers and directors as a group (10 persons) (11)   22,003,169   35.7%

* Less than 1%

(1) Includes 9,822,262 common shares owned by Broadwood Partners, L.P. 42,908 shares owned by Neal C. Bradsher, and 95,000 common shares that may
be acquired upon the exercise of certain stock options that are presently exercisable or that may become exercisable within 60 days.  Excludes 5,000
common shares that may be acquired by Mr. Bradsher upon the exercise of certain stock options that are not presently exercisable and that will not
become exercisable within 60 days.  Broadwood Capital, Inc. is the general partner of Broadwood Partners, L.P., and Mr. Bradsher is the President of
Broadwood Capital, Inc.  Mr. Bradsher and Broadwood Capital, Inc. may be deemed to beneficially own the shares that Broadwood Partners, L.P. owns.

(2) Includes 1,627,405 common shares presently owned by Greenbelt Corp, 375,351 common shares owned by Greenway Partners, L.P., 6,588,055 common
shares owned solely by Alfred D. Kingsley, and 237,500 Common Shares that may be acquired by Mr. Kingsley upon the exercise of certain stock
options that are presently exercisable or that may become exercisable within 60 days.  Excludes 12,500 common shares that may be acquired by Mr.
Kingsley upon the exercise of certain stock options that are not presently exercisable and that will not become exercisable within 60 days.  Mr. Kingsley
controls Greenbelt Corp. and Greenway Partners, L.P. and may be deemed to beneficially own the common shares that Greenbelt Corp. and Greenway
Partners, L.P. own.

(3) Includes 1,549,566 common shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of certain stock options that are presently exercisable or that may become
exercisable within 60 days.  Excludes 320,834 common shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of certain stock options that are not presently
exercisable and that will not become exercisable within 60 days.

(4) Includes 19,791 common shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of certain stock options that are presently exerciseable or that may become
exercisable within 60 days.  Excludes 80,209 common shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of certain stock options that are not presently
exercisable and that will not become exercisable within 60 days.
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(5) Includes 514,583 common shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of certain stock options that are presently exercisable or that may become
exercisable within 60 days.  Excludes 160,417 common shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of certain stock options that are not presently
exercisable and that will not become exercisable within 60 days.

(6) Includes 91,188 common shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of certain options and 29,247 common shares that may be acquired upon the
exercise of certain warrants that are presently exercisable or that may become exercisable within 60 days.  Excludes 166,909 common shares that may be
acquired upon the exercise of certain stock options that are not presently exercisable and that will not become exercisable within 60 days.

(7) Includes 95,000 common shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of certain options that are presently exercisable or that may become exercisable
within 60 days.  Excludes 5,000 common shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of certain stock options that are not presently exercisable and
that will not become exercisable within 60 days.

(8) Includes 35,000 common shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of certain options that may become exercisable within 60 days.  Excludes 15,000
common shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of certain stock options that are not presently exercisable and that will not become exercisable
within 60 days.

(9) Excludes 20,000 common shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of certain stock options that are not presently exercisable and that will not
become exercisable within 60 days.

(10) Excludes 20,000 common shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of certain stock options that are not presently exercisable and that will not
become exercisable within 60 days.

(11) Includes 2,569,681 common shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of certain options and 29,247 common shares that may be acquired upon the
exercise of certain warrants that are presently exercisable or that may become exercisable within 60 days.  Excludes 795,869 common shares that may be
acquired upon the exercise of certain options that are not presently exercisable and will not become exercisable within 60 days.

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Certain Transactions

Since July 1 2009, Alfred D. Kingsley has made available to us the use of approximately 900 square feet of office space in New York City.  We pay
the office building owner $5,050 per month for the use of the space.

Related Person Transaction Policy

During April 2011, we adopted a Related Person Transaction Policy that applies to transactions exceeding $120,000 in which any of our officers,
directors, beneficial owners of more than 5% of our common shares, or any member of their immediate family, has a direct or indirect material interest,
determined in accordance with the policy (a “Related Party Transaction”).  A Related Party Transaction must be reported to our outside legal counsel, our
Chief Operating Officer, and our Chief Financial Officer, and will be subject to review and approval by our Audit Committee prior to effectiveness or
consummation, to the extent practical.  In addition, any Related Party Transaction that is ongoing in nature will be reviewed by the Audit Committee annually
to ensure that the transaction has been conducted in accordance with any previous approval and that all required disclosures regarding the transaction are
made.
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As appropriate for the circumstances, the Audit Committee will review and consider:

 · the interest of the officer, director, beneficial owner of more than 5% of our common shares, or any member of their immediate family (“Related
Person”) in the Related Person Transaction;

 · the approximate dollar value of the amount involved in the Related Person Transaction;

 · the approximate dollar value of the amount of the Related Person’s interest in the transaction without regard to the amount of any profit or loss;

 · whether the transaction was undertaken in the ordinary course of our business;

 · whether the transaction with the Related Person is proposed to be, or was, entered into on terms no less favorable to us than terms that could
have been reached with an unrelated third party;

 · the purpose of, and the potential benefits to the transaction to us; and

 · any other information regarding the Related Person Transaction or the Related Person in the context of the proposed transaction that would be
material to investors in light of the circumstances of the particular transaction.

The Audit Committee will review all relevant information available to it about a Related Person Transaction.  The Audit Committee may approve or
ratify the Related Person Transaction only if the Audit Committee determines that, under all of the circumstances, the transaction is in, or is not in conflict
with, our best interests.  The Audit Committee may, in its sole discretion, impose such conditions as it deems appropriate on us or the Related Person in
connection with approval of the Related Person Transaction.

A copy of our Related Person Transaction Policy can be found on our website at www.biotimeinc.com.

Director Independence

Our Board of Directors has determined that Deborah Andrews, Neal C. Bradsher, Stephen C. Farrell, Pedro Lichtinger, and David Schlachet qualify
as “independent” in accordance with Section 803(A) of the NYSE MKT Company Guide.  The members of our Audit Committee also meet the independence
standards under Section 803(B)(2) of the NYSE MKT Company Guide and Section 10A-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the
member of our Compensation Committee also meets the independence standards of Section 8.05(c) of the NYSE MKT Company Guide.

 
Four of our former directors, Franklin Berger, Arnold I. Burns, Henry L. Nordhoff, and Andrew von Eschenbach, who served on the Board of

Directors and on our Audit Committee during 2013, also qualified as “independent” in accordance with Section 803(A) of the NYSE MKT Company Guide
and the independence standards under Section 803(B)(2) of the NYSE MKT Company Guide and Section 10A-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended.  Messrs. Berger, Burns, and Nordhoff also met the independence standards of Section 8.05(c) of the NYSE MKT Company Guide as members of
the Compensation Committee.
  

The only compensation or remuneration that BioTime has provided to Ms. Andrews, Mr. Bradsher, Mr. Farrell, Mr. Lichtinger, and Mr. Schlachet,
and provided to Mr. Berger, Mr. Burns, Mr. Nordhoff, and Dr. von Eschenbach during their tenure as directors, has been compensation as non-employee
directors.  None of these directors, nor any of the members of their families, have participated in any transaction with us that would disqualify them as
“independent” directors under the standard described above.
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Michael D. West and Judith Segall do not qualify as “independent” because they are our full-time employees.  Alfred D. Kingsley does not qualify as
“independent” because he receives compensation for serving in an executive role as Chairman of certain of our subsidiaries.

Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our directors and executive officers and persons who own more than ten percent (10%) of a registered
class of our equity securities to file with the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of common shares and other BioTime
equity securities. Officers, directors and greater than ten percent beneficial owners are required by SEC regulations to furnish us with copies of all reports
they file under Section 16(a).

To our knowledge, based solely on our review of the copies of such reports furnished to us, all Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable to our
officers, directors, and greater than ten percent beneficial owners were complied with during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013.

Item 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Rothstein Kass has served as our independent registered public accountants since February 2007 and audited our annual financial statements for the
fiscal years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

Audit and Quarterly Review Fees. Rothstein Kass billed us $229,500 in 2013 and $323,500 in 2012, respectively, for the audit of our annual
financial statements and for the review of our financial statements included in our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q.

Tax Fees. Rothstein Kass billed us $65,500 and $65,000, respectively, for review and preparation of U.S. federal, state, and local tax returns during
the fiscal years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

Other Fees. There were no other fees charged to us by Rothstein Kass during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

The prior approval of the Board of Directors or Audit Committee is required for the engagement of our auditors to perform any non-audit services
for us.  Other than de minimis services incidental to audit services, non-audit services shall generally be limited to tax services such as advice and planning
and financial due diligence services.  All fees for such non-audit services must be approved by the Board of Directors or Audit Committee, except to the
extent otherwise permitted by applicable SEC regulations.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

Item 15(a) The following documents of BioTime, Inc. were filed as part of the Annual Report on Form 10-K that was filed in March 17, 2014.

(1) Financial Statements.

Consolidated balance sheets
Consolidated statements of operations
Consolidated statements of shareholders' deficit
Consolidated statements of cash flows

Notes to Financial Statements

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted because the required information is inapplicable or the information is presented in the financial statements or the notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits.

Exhibit
Numbers Description
2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated February 11, 2010, between Glycosan BioSystems, Inc., OrthoCyte Corporation, and BioTime, Inc. (1)
  
2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated April 19, 2012, by and among XenneX, Inc., LifeMap Sciences, Inc., BioTime, Inc. and the stockholders

of XenneX, Inc. named therein. (Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment). (2)
  
2.3 Asset Contribution Agreement, dated January 4, 2013, by and among BioTime, Inc., BioTime Acquisition Corporation, and Geron Corporation. 

Schedules to the Asset Contribution Agreement have been omitted.  BioTime agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of the omitted schedules to
the Commission upon request. (3)

  
3.1 Articles of Incorporation with all amendments **
  
3.2 By-Laws, As Amended. (4)
  
4.1 Specimen of Common Share Certificate. (5)
  
4.2 Specimen of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock Certificate (6)
  
4.3 Certificate of Determination of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (6)
  
4.4 Warrant Agreement between BioTime, Inc., Broadwood Partners, L.P., and George Karfunkel. (7)
  
4.5 Form of Warrant. (7)
  
4.6 Warrant Agreement between BioTime, Inc. and Biomedical Sciences Investment Fund Pte. Ltd. (8)
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4.7 Warrant Agreement between BioTime, Inc. and Romulus Films, Ltd. (9)
  
4.8 Form of Warrant. (included in Exhibit 4.7) (9)
  
4.9 Form of Warrant Issued June 2013 (10)
  
4.10 Warrant Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2013, between BioTime, Inc. and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC as Warrant Agent

for the benefit of Asterias Biotherapeutics, Inc. (11)
  
4.11 Warrant Issued October 1, 2013 to Asterias Biotherapeutics, Inc. (included in Exhibit 4.6) (11)
  
10.1 Intellectual Property Agreement between BioTime, Inc. and Hal Sternberg. (6)
  
10.2 Intellectual Property Agreement between BioTime, Inc. and Judith Segall. (6)
  
10.3 2002 Stock Option Plan, as amended. (12)
  
10.4 Exclusive License Agreement between Abbott Laboratories and BioTime, Inc. (Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to a request

for confidential treatment) (13)
  
10.5 Modification of Exclusive License Agreement between Abbott Laboratories and BioTime, Inc. (Portions of this exhibit have been omitted

pursuant to a request for confidential treatment). (14)
  
10.6 Exclusive License Agreement between BioTime, Inc. and CJ Corp. (15)
  
10.7 Hextend® and PentaLyte® Collaboration Agreement between BioTime, Inc. and Summit Pharmaceuticals International Corporation (16)
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10.37 Share Purchase Agreement, dated November 1, 2012, between Cell Cure Neurosciences, Ltd. and BioTime, Inc. (31)
  
10.38 Amendment to Share Exchange and Contribution Agreement, dated November 30, 2012, by and among LifeMap Sciences, Inc., Alfred D.

Kingsley, and Greenway Partners, L.P. (32)
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101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase. *
  
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase. *

(1) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010.

(2) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2012.

(3) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 8, 2013

(4) Incorporated by reference to Registration Statement on Form S-1, File Number 33-48717 and Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 thereto filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 22, 1992, and August 27, 1992, respectively

(5) Incorporated by reference to Registration Statement on Form S-1, File Number 33-44549 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
December 18, 1991, and Amendment No. 1 and Amendment No. 2 thereto filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 6,
1992 and March 7, 1992, respectively

(6) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 5, 2014

(7) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2009

(8) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2010

(9) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012

(10) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 3, 2013

(11) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 1, 2013

(12) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2009

(13) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed April 24, 1997

(14) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Form Quarterly Report on 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999

(15) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Annual Report on Form 10-K/A-1 for the year ended December 31, 2002
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(16) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 30, 2004

(17) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed December 20, 2005

(18) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed January 13, 2006

(19) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed March 30, 2006

(20) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 2007

(21) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed January 9, 2008

(22) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2008

(23) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2008

(24) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008

(25) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2009

(26) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 19, 2010

(27) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2011

(28) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2011

(29) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011

(30) Incorporated by reference to Registration Statement on Form S-3, File Number 333-182964 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on July 31, 2012

(31) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2012

(32) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012

(33) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2013

(34) Incorporated by reference to BioTime’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2013

* Previously filed with BioTime’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013

** Filed herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Amendment No. 1 on
Form 10-K /A to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on the 29th day of April 2014.

 BIOTIME, INC.  
    
 By: /s/Michael D. West  
  Michael D. West, Ph.D.  
  Chief Executive Officer  
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Exhibit 3.1

 1516389
 

ENDORSED
FILED

in the office of the Secretary of State
of the State of California

 
NOV 30 1990

 
MARCH FONG EU, Secretary of

State

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF

BIOTIME, INC

I

The name of the corporation is BIOTIME, INC.

II

The purpose of this corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for which a corporation may be organized under the general Corporation
Law of California other than the banking business, the trust company business or the practice of a profession permitted to be incorporated by the California
Corporations Code.

III

NUMBER OF DIRECTORS

The authorized number of directors shall be no less than seven nor more than thirteen as set by resolution of the Board of Directors. The initial
number of directors shall be seven.

IV

The name and address in this state of the corporation's initial agent for service of process is:

 Ronald S. Barkin
 3050 Shattuck Avenue
 Berkeley, CA 97404



V

This corporation is authorized to issue only one class of shares of stock which shall be designated common stock. The total number of shares it is
authorized to issue is ten million (10,000,000).

VI

NO PREFERENCES, PRIVILEGES, RESTRICTIONS

No distinctions shall exist between the shares of the corporation of the holders thereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, who are the incorporators of this corporation have executed these Articles of Incorporation on
November 30, 1990.

 /s/ Ronald S. Barkin
 RONALD S. BARKIN, Incorporator



AMENDED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF

BIOTIME, INC.

Paul Segall and Judith Segall certify that:

1.                 They are the President and the Secretary, respectively, of BioTime, Inc., a California Corporation.

2.                 The Articles of Incorporation of this corporation are amended to read in full as follows:

"ONE: The name of this corporation is BioTime, Inc.

TWO: The purpose of the corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for which a corporation may be organized under the
General Corporation Law of California other than the banking business, the trust company business, or the practice of a profession permitted to be
incorporated by the California Corporations Code.

THREE: The corporation is authorized to issue two classes of shares, which shall be designated "Common Shares" and "Preferred
Shares". The number of Common Shares which the corporation is authorized to issue is 5,000,000 and the number of Preferred Shares which the corporation
is authorized to issue is 1,000,000. The Preferred Shares may be issued in one or more series as the board of directors may by resolution determine. The board
of directors is authorized to fix the number of shares of any series of Preferred Shares and to determine or alter the rights, preferences, privileges, and
restrictions granted to or imposed on the shares of Preferred Shares as a class, or upon any wholly unissued series of any Preferred Shares. The board of
directors may, by resolution, increase or decrease (but not below the number of shares of such series then outstanding) the number of shares of any series of
Preferred Shares subsequent to the issue of shares of that series. Upon the amendment of this article to read as herein set forth, each outstanding share of
common stock is converted into or reconstituted as 0.1667 Common Share.

FOUR: The liability of the directors of the corporation for monetary damages shall be eliminated to the fullest extent permissible under
California law. The corporation is authorized to indemnify "agents", as such term is defined in Section 317 of the California Corporations Code, to the fullest
extent permissible under California law."

3.                 The foregoing amendment of articles of incorporation has been duly approved by the board of directors.

4.              The foregoing amendment of articles of incorporation has been duly approved by the required vote of shareholders in accordance with
Section 902 of the Corporations Code. The total number of outstanding shares of the corporation is 5,351,672. The number of shares voting in favor of the
amendment equaled or exceeded the vote required. The percentage vote required was more than 50%.



We further declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the matters set forth in this amendment are true and correct of our
own knowledge.

Date: July 15, 1991
 /s/ Paul Segall
 Paul Segall, President
  
 /s/ Judith Segall
 Judith Segall, Secretary
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ENDORSED
FILED

in the office of the Secretary of State
of the State of California

 
JUL 20 1997

 
/s/ Bill Jones

BILL JONES, Secretary of State

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

Paul E. Segall and Judith Segall certify that:

1. They are the President and Secretary, respectively, of BioTime, Inc., a California corporation.

2. The sentence of Article THREE of the Articles of Incorporation that now reads "The number of Common Shares which the Corporation is
authorized to issue is 5,000,000 and the number of Preferred Shares which the Corporation is authorized to issue is 1,000,000" is amended to read as follows:

"The number of Common Shares which the Corporation is authorized to issue is 25,000,000 and the number of Preferred Shares which the
Corporation is authorized to issue is 1,000,000."

3. The foregoing amendment of Articles of Incorporation has been duly approved by the board of directors.

4. The foregoing amendment of Articles of Incorporation has been duly approved by the required vote of shareholders in accordance with section
902 of the Corporations Code. The total number of outstanding Common Shares of the corporation is 3,203,193. There are no Preferred Shares outstanding.
The number of Common Shares voting in favor of the amendment equaled or exceeded the vote required. The percentage vote required was more than 50%.



We further declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the matters set forth in this certificate are true
and correct of our own knowledge.

Executed at Berkeley, California on June 20, 1997.

 /s/ Paul Segall
 Paul E. Segall, President
  
 /s/ Judith Segall
 Judith Segall, Secretary
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ENDORSED - FILED
in the office of the Secretary of State

of the State of California
 

JUL 18 1998
 

BILL JONES, Secretary of State

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

Ronald S. Barkin and Judith Segall certify that:

1. They are the President and Secretary, respectively, of BioTime, Inc., a California corporation.

2. The sentence of Article THREE of the Articles of Incorporation that now reads "The number of Common Shares which the Corporation is
authorized to issue is 25,000,000 and the number of Preferred Shares which the Corporation is authorized to issue is 1,000,000" is amended to read as
follows:

"The number of Common Shares which the Corporation is authorized to issue is 40,000,000 and the number of Preferred Shares which the
Corporation is authorized to issue is 1,000,000."

3. The foregoing amendment of Articles of Incorporation has been duly approved by the board of directors.

4. The foregoing amendment of Articles of Incorporation has been duly approved by the required vote of shareholders in accordance with section
902 of the Corporations Code. The total number of outstanding Common Shares of the corporation entitled to vote with respect to the amendment was
9,935,579. There are no Preferred Shares outstanding. The number of Common Shares voting in favor of the amendment equaled or exceeded the vote
required. The percentage vote required was more than 50%.



We further declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the matters set forth in this certificate are true
and correct of our own knowledge.

Executed at Berkeley, California on June 1, 1998.

 /s/ Ronald S. Barkin
 Ronald S. Barkin, President
  
 /s/ Judith Segall
 Judith Segall, Secretary
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FILED
in the office of the Secretary of State

of the State of California
 

JUL 27 2006

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

Hal Sternberg and Judith Segall certify that:

1.                 They are the Vice-President and Secretary, respectively, of BioTime, Inc., a California corporation.

2.                The second sentence of Article THREE of the Articles of Incorporation of the corporation is amended to read as follows:

"The number of Common Shares which the corporation is authorized to issue is 50,000,000, and the number of Preferred Shares which
the corporation is authorized to issue is 1,000,000."

3.                 The foregoing amendment of Articles of Incorporation has been duly approved by the board of directors.

4.              The foregoing amendment of Articles of Incorporation has been duly approved by the required vote of shareholders in accordance with
section 902 of the Corporations Code. The total number of outstanding shares of the corporation entitled to vote with respect to the amendment was
22,574,374. The number of shares voting in favor of the amendment equaled or exceeded the vote required. The percentage vote required was more than 50%.

We further declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the matters set forth in this certificate are true and correct
of our own knowledge.

Executed at Emeryville, California on July 25, 2006.

 /s/ Hal Sternberg
 Hal Sternberg, Vice President
  
 /s/ Judith Segall
 Judith Segall, Secretary
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ENDORSED - FILED
in the office of the Secretary of State

of the State of California
 

OCT 19 2009

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

Michael D. West and Judith Segall certify that:

1.                 They are the President and Secretary, respectively, of BioTime, Inc., a California corporation.

2.                 Article THREE of the Articles of Incorporation of the corporation is amended to read as follows:

THREE: The corporation is authorized to issue two classes of shares, which shall be designated "Common Shares" and "Preferred Shares". The
number of Common Shares which the corporation is authorized to issue is 75,000,000, and the number of Preferred Shares which the corporation is
authorized to issue is 1,000,000. The Preferred Shares may be issued in one or more series as the board of directors may by resolution designate.
The board of directors is authorized to fix the number of shares of any series of Preferred Shares and to determine or alter the rights, preferences,
privileges, and restrictions granted to or imposed upon the Preferred Shares as a class, or upon any wholly unissued series of Preferred Shares. The
board of directors may, by resolution, increase or decrease (but not below the number of shares of such series then outstanding) the number of
shares of any series of Preferred Shares subsequent to the issue of shares of that series.

3.                 The foregoing amendment of Articles of Incorporation has been duly approved by the board of directors.

4.              The foregoing amendment of Articles of Incorporation has been duly approved by the required vote of shareholders in accordance with
section 902 of the Corporations Code. The total number of outstanding Common Shares of the corporation entitled to vote with respect to the amendment was
32,614,563. The number of Common Shares voting in favor of the amendment equaled or exceeded the vote required. The percentage vote required was more
than 50%. There are no Preferred Shares of the corporation issued and outstanding.



We further declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the matters set forth in this certificate are true
and correct of our own knowledge.

Executed at Alameda, California on October 16, 2009.

 /s/ Michael D. West
 Michael D. West, President
  
 /s/ Judith Segall
 Judith Segall, Secretary
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FILED
Secretary of State
State of California

 
May 22, 2013

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

Michael D. West and Judith Segall certify that:

1.                  They are the President and Secretary, respectively, of BioTime, Inc., a California corporation.

2.                  Article THREE of the Articles of Incorporation of the corporation is amended to read as follows:

THREE: The corporation is authorized to issue two classes of shares, which shall be designated "Common Shares" and "Preferred Shares". The
number of Common Shares which the corporation is authorized to issue is 125,000,000, and the number of Preferred Shares which the corporation
is authorized to issue is 2,000,000. The Preferred Shares may be issued in one or more series as the board of directors may by resolution designate.
The board of directors is authorized to fix the number of shares of any series of Preferred Shares and to determine or alter the rights, preferences,
privileges, and restrictions granted to or imposed upon the Preferred Shares as a class, or upon any wholly unissued series of Preferred Shares. The
board of directors may, by resolution, increase or decrease (but not below the number of shares of such series then outstanding) the number of
shares of any series of Preferred Shares subsequent to the issue of shares of that series.

3.                  The foregoing amendment of Articles of Incorporation has been duly approved by the board of directors.

4.                The foregoing amendment of Articles of Incorporation has been duly approved by the required vote of shareholders in accordance with
section 902 of the Corporations Code. The total number of outstanding Common Shares of the corporation entitled to vote with respect to the amendment was
53,361,825. The number of Common Shares voting in favor of the amendment equaled or exceeded the vote required. The percentage vote required was more
than 50% of the outstanding Common Shares entitled to vote. There are no Preferred Shares of the corporation issued and outstanding.



We further declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the matters set forth in this certificate are true and
correct of our own knowledge.

Executed at Alameda, California on May 21, 2013.

 /s/ Michael D. West
 Michael D. West, President
  
 /s/ Judith Segall
 Judith Segall, Secretary



A0752257            FILED
Secretary of State

State of California
March 03 2014

CERTIFICATE OF DETERMINATION OF PREFERENCE
OF SERIES A CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED SHARES OF

BIOTIME, INC.

Michael D. West and Judith Segall certify that:

I.             They are the President and Secretary, respectively, of BioTime, Inc., a California corporation.

II.            Pursuant to authority given by the corporation's Articles of Incorporation, the Board of Directors of the Corporation has duly adopted the following
resolutions:

"RESOLVED, that pursuant to the authority vested in the Board of Directors of the Corporation by Article Three of the Corporation's Articles of
Incorporation, a series of Preferred Shares of the Corporation is created out of the authorized but unissued Preferred Shares of the Corporation, such series to
be designated Series A Convertible Preferred Shares (the "Series A Preferred Stock"), to consist of 300,000 shares, no par value, with the rights, preferences,
privileges and restrictions of which shall be as follows:

1.             Certain Definitions

Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined in this Section 1 shall have, for all purposes of this resolution, the meanings herein
specified.

Board of Directors: The Board of Directors of the Corporation.

Business Day: Means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday, or day on which banks in California or New York are required or permitted to close.

Common Stock: Shares now or hereafter authorized of any class of Common Shares of the Corporation.

Corporation: BioTime, Inc., a California corporation.

Conversion Date: The meaning set forth in Section 4(e) below.

Conversion Price: The “Conversion Price” at which Common Stock shall initially be issuable upon conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock shall
be four dollars ($4.00) per share, subject to the adjustments set forth in Section 4(g).

Fair Value: The meaning set forth in Section 4(h) below.



Junior Stock: For purposes of Section 2 below, the Common Stock and any other class or series of shares of the Corporation not entitled to receive
any dividends in any dividend period unless all preferential dividends required to have been paid or declared and set apart for payment on the Preferred Stock
shall have been so paid or declared and set apart for payment and, for purposes of Section 3 below, the Common Stock and any other class or series of shares
of the Corporation not entitled to receive any assets upon the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the Corporation until the Preferred Stock
shall have received the entire preferential amount to which such shares are entitled upon such liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

Parity Stock: For purposes of Section 2 below, any class or series of shares of the Corporation that, with respect to a particular class or series of stock
of the Corporation, is entitled to receive payment of dividends on a parity with the referenced class or series of stock, and, for purposes of Section 3 below,
any class or series of shares of the Corporation that, with respect to a particular class or series of stock of the Corporation is entitled to receive assets upon the
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the Corporation on a parity with the referenced class or series of stock.

Preferred Stock: Any class or series of shares of the Corporation ranking senior to the Common Stock in respect of the right to receive dividends or
in respect of the right to receive assets upon the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the Corporation.

Series A Preferred Stock: The Series A Convertible Preferred Shares of the Corporation.

Senior Stock: For purposes of Section 2 below, any class or series of shares of the Corporation that is entitled to receive dividends before any
dividends are paid to the Series A Preferred Stock, and, for purposes of Section 3 below, any class or series of shares of the Corporation that is entitled to
receive assets upon the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the Corporation before any assets are distributed to the Series A Preferred
Stock.

Subscription Price: Fifty Dollars ($50.00) per share of Series A Preferred Stock subject to proportional adjustment for any stock split, reverse stock
split, stock dividend, combination, recapitalization or the like with respect to Series A Preferred Stock.

Subsidiary: Any corporation of which shares of stock possessing at least a majority of the general voting power in electing the board of directors are,
at the time as of which any determination is being made, owned by the Corporation, whether directly or indirectly through one or more corporations or other
business entities.
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2.            Dividends.

(a)           Subject to the prior preferences and other rights of any Senior Stock, but before payment of any dividends or other distributions to
holders of Junior Stock (excluding dividends or other distributions to holders of Junior Stock payable exclusively in Junior Stock or rights to purchase Junior
Stock), the holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive, on a pari passu basis, a cumulative cash dividend in an amount equal to three
percent (3%) of the Subscription Price per share, which shall be deemed accrued on June 30, and December 31 of each year regardless of whether declared by
the Board of Directors. The dividend shall be paid, from funds legally available for such purpose, in two semi-annual installments on January 31 and July 31
of each year, or if such day is not a Business Day, on the next Business Day. Each such dividend shall be paid to the holders of record of the Series A
Preferred Stock as their names appear on the share register of the Corporation on June 30, and December 31 of each year, as applicable, or, if a different date
is designated by the Board of Directors with respect to the dividend payable, on the last Business Day immediately before the date on which the dividend is
required to be paid.

(b)            Any dividends or distributions declared and paid or distributed with respect to Junior Stock (other than dividends or distributions in shares
of Junior Stock resulting in an adjustment to the Conversion Price under Section 4(g)) shall likewise be declared and paid or distributed to holders of Series A
Preferred Stock such that all holders of Junior Stock and Series A Preferred Stock shall receive such dividends or distributions in proportion to the number of
shares of Junior Stock that would be held by each such holder if all shares of Series A Preferred Stock were converted to Common Stock (or such other series
of Junior Stock, if applicable) at the Conversion Price in effect as of the record date for the determination of holders of Common Stock entitled to receive
such dividend or distribution (or such other series of Junior Stock, if applicable); provided that the Board of Directors shall set the same record date for the
determination of holders of Series A Preferred Stock, Parity Stock, and Junior Stock entitled to receive such dividend or distribution.

3.            Distributions Upon Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up.

(a)            In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or other winding up of the affairs of the Corporation, subject to the
preferences and other rights of any Senior Stock, the holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to be paid any dividends accrued pursuant to Section
2(a) but remaining unpaid. Such dividends shall be paid in cash. If the cash of the Corporation legally available for such distribution among the holders of the
Series A Preferred Stock and any Parity Stock shall be insufficient to permit the payment to such holders of the full aforesaid preferential amount, then the
entire amount legally available for distribution shall be distributed ratably among the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock and any Parity Stock in
proportion to the full preferential amount that each such holder is otherwise entitled to receive under Section 2(a).

(b)            Subject to the preferences and other rights of any Senior Stock, upon completion of the distribution required by subsection (a) of this
Section 3, all of the remaining assets of the Corporation available for distribution to stockholders shall be distributed among the holders of Series A Preferred
Stock, Parity Stock, and Common Stock in proportion to the number of shares of Common Stock that would be held by each such holder if all shares of Series
A Preferred Stock and Parity Stock were converted into Common Stock at the applicable Conversion Price of Series A Preferred Stock and Parity Stock in
effect as of the record date for the determination of holders of Common Stock entitled to receive such distribution; provided that the Board of Directors shall
set the same record date for the determination of holders of Series A Preferred Stock, Parity Stock, and Common Stock entitled to receive such distribution.
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(c)            The (i) acquisition of the Corporation by another entity by means of any transaction or series of transactions (including, without limitation,
any reorganization, merger or consolidation) in which the shareholders of the Corporation do not own a majority of the outstanding shares of the surviving or
acquiring corporation upon completion of such transaction or series of transactions or (ii) a sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation shall
be deemed a liquidation under this Section.

(d)            The Corporation shall give each holder of record of Series A Preferred Stock written notice of an impending transaction deemed to be a
liquidation under this Section not later than twenty (20) days prior to the shareholders’ meeting called to approve such transaction, or twenty (20) days prior
to the closing of such transaction, whichever is earlier, and shall also notify such holders in writing of the final approval of such transaction. The first of such
notices shall describe the material terms and conditions of the impending transaction, and the Corporation shall thereafter give such holders prompt notice of
any material changes. The transaction shall in no event take place sooner than twenty (20) days after the Corporation has given the first notice provided for
herein or sooner than ten (10) days after the Corporation has given notice of any material changes provided for herein; provided, however, that such periods
may be shortened upon the written consent of the holders of Series A Preferred Stock that represent at least a majority of the then outstanding shares of Series
A Preferred Stock.

(e)            If the Corporation shall propose to take any action of the types described in Section 3(a) that will involve the distribution of assets other
than cash, the notice described in subparagraph (d) above shall set forth a determination of the value (which may be an estimated value) of the assets to be
distributed to the holders of shares of the Series A Preferred Stock, as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

4.              Conversion Rights. The Series A Preferred Stock shall be convertible into Common Stock as follows:
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(a)            Conversion by Holder.

(i)            Optional Conversion. Subject to and upon compliance with the provisions of this Section 4, and provided that an exemption from
registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and an exemption from registration or qualification under applicable state securities or "blue sky"
laws is then available, as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors, the Series A Preferred Stock shall be convertible at the election of the holder
thereof, at any time and from time to time, into a number of fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock determined in accordance with
subparagraph (d) of this Section 4.

(b)            Automatic Conversion. Each outstanding share of Series A Preferred Stock shall automatically be converted, without any further act of the
Corporation or its shareholders, into fully paid and nonassessable Common Stock at the Conversion Price then in effect upon the earlier of:

(i)            Automatic Conversion Date. March 4, 2019; or,

(ii)           Vote. The holders of at least a majority of the outstanding shares of the Series A Preferred Stock, voting as a class, approve or
consent to such conversion.

(c)            Valid Issuance. All Common Stock which may be issued upon conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock will upon issuance by the
Corporation be duly and validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable and free from all taxes, liens and charges with respect to the issuance thereof, and the
Corporation shall take no action which will cause a contrary result.

(d)            Number of Shares Issuable Upon Conversion. Each share of Series A Preferred Stock shall be converted into the number of shares of
Common Stock determined by dividing (x) a number equal to the number of dollars and cents comprising the Subscription Price, by (y) a number equal to the
number of dollars and cents comprising the Conversion Price in effect on the Conversion Date.

(i)           Accrued But Unpaid Dividends. Upon the conversion of any Series A Preferred Stock, any accrued but unpaid dividends with
respect to each such share shall be paid by the Corporation in cash, but any other dividends shall not be payable from and after the date of such conversion. A
dividend shall be deemed accrued on June 30, and December 31 of each year for this purpose regardless of whether declared by the Board of Directors.

(e)            Mechanics of Conversion. The holder of any Series A Preferred Stock may exercise the conversion right specified in paragraph (a) of this
Section 4 by surrendering to the Secretary of the Corporation or any transfer agent of the Corporation the certificate or certificates for the shares to be
converted, if such shares are certificated, accompanied by written notice specifying the number of shares to be converted. Upon the occurrence of the event
specified in paragraph (b) of this Section 4, the outstanding Series A Preferred Stock shall be converted automatically without any further action by the
holders of such shares and whether or not the certificates representing such shares are surrendered to the Corporation or its transfer agent. Conversion shall be
deemed to have been effected on the date when delivery of notice of an election to convert and certificates for shares is made in the case of conversion under
paragraph (a) of this Section 4, or on the date of the event specified in paragraph (b) of this Section 4, and such date is referred to herein as the "Conversion
Date." Subject to the provisions of subparagraph (g)(ii) of this Section 4, as promptly as practicable thereafter (and after surrender of the certificate or
certificates evidencing Series A Preferred Stock to the Corporation or any transfer agent of the Corporation, if applicable) the Corporation shall issue and
deliver to or upon the written order of such holder a certificate or certificates for the number of shares of Common Stock to which such holder is entitled and
a check or cash with respect to any fractional interest in any share of Common Stock as provided in paragraph (f) of this Section 4. Subject to the provisions
of subparagraph (g)(ii) of this Section 4, the person in whose name the certificate or certificates for Common Stock are to be issued shall be deemed to have
become a holder of record of such Common Stock on the applicable Conversion Date. Upon conversion of only a portion of the number of shares covered by
a certificate representing Series A Preferred Stock surrendered for conversion (in the case of conversion pursuant to paragraph (a) of this Section 4), as
applicable, the Corporation shall issue and deliver to or upon the written order of the holder of the certificate so surrendered for conversion, at the expense of
the Corporation, a new certificate covering the number of shares of Series A Preferred Stock representing the unconverted portion of the certificate so
surrendered, if such shares are to be held in certificated form. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Corporation shall not be obligated to issue to any holder of
Series A Preferred Stock certificates evidencing the Common Stock issuable upon such conversion unless certificates evidencing the Series A Preferred Stock
are delivered to either the Corporation or any transfer agent of the Corporation if such shares of Series A Preferred Stock are held in certificated form.
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(f)            Fractional Shares. No fractional share of Common Stock or scrip shall be issued upon conversion of Series A Preferred Stock. If more than
one share of Series A Preferred Stock shall be surrendered for conversion at any one time by the same holder, the number of shares of Common Stock
issuable upon conversion thereof shall be computed on the basis of the aggregate number of shares of Series A Preferred Stock so surrendered. Instead of any
fractional share of Common Stock which would otherwise be issuable upon conversion of any Series A Preferred Stock, the Corporation shall pay a cash
adjustment in respect of such fractional interest in an amount equal to that fractional interest at the then Fair Value.

(g)           Conversion Price Adjustments. If the Corporation shall (A) declare a dividend or make a distribution on its Common Stock in shares of
Common Stock, (B) subdivide or reclassify the outstanding Common Stock into a greater number of shares, or (C) combine or reclassify the outstanding
Common Stock into a smaller number of shares, the Conversion Price in effect at the time of the record date for such dividend or distribution or the effective
date of such subdivision, combination or reclassification shall be proportionately adjusted so that the holder of any Series A Preferred Stock surrendered for
conversion after such date shall be entitled to receive the number of shares of Common Stock which he would have owned or been entitled to receive had
such Series A Preferred Stock been converted immediately prior to such date. Successive adjustments in the Conversion Price shall be made whenever any
event specified above shall occur.
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(i)            Rounding of Calculations; Minimum Adjustment. All calculations under this Section 4(g) shall be made to the nearest cent or to
the nearest one hundredth (1/100th) of a share, as the case may be. Any provision of this Section 4 to the contrary notwithstanding, no adjustment in the
Conversion Price shall be made if the amount of such adjustment would be less than one percent (1%) of the Conversion Price, but any such amount shall be
carried forward and an adjustment with respect thereto shall be made at the time of and together with any subsequent adjustment which, together with such
amount and any other amount or amounts so carried forward, shall aggregate one percent (1%) of the Conversion Price or more. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the Board of Directors may elect at any time to make an adjustment otherwise required under this Section 4(g) of less than one percent (1%).

(ii)           Timing of Issuance of Additional Common Stock Upon Certain Adjustments. In any case in which the provisions of this Section
4(g) require that an adjustment shall become effective immediately after a record date for an event, the Corporation may defer until the occurrence of such
event (A) issuing to the holder of any Series A Preferred Stock converted after such record date and before the occurrence of such event the additional
Common Stock issuable upon such conversion by reason of the adjustment required by such event over and above the Common Stock issuable upon such
conversion before giving effect to such adjustment, and (B) paying to such holder any amount of cash in lieu of a fractional Common Share pursuant to
paragraph (h) of this Section 4; provided that the Corporation upon request shall deliver to such holder a due bill or other appropriate instrument evidencing
such holder's right to receive such additional shares, and such cash, upon the occurrence of the event requiring such adjustment.

(h)           Fair Value. The “Fair Value” per share of Common Stock for any date shall be determined by the Board of Directors as follows:

(i)            If the Common Stock is listed on a national securities exchange, the Fair Value shall be the average of the last reported sale price
of the Common Stock on such exchange, for the last twenty consecutive trading days prior to such date; or

(ii)           If the Common Stock is not listed on a national securities exchange but prices for the Common Stock are reported on the Nasdaq
OTC Bulletin Board, the Fair Value shall be the average of the daily high and low sales prices reported on Nasdaq OTC Bulletin Board during the last twenty
consecutive trading days prior to such date; or
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(iii)          If the prices for the Common Stock cannot be determined under Section 4(h)(i) or Section 4(h)(ii), the Fair Value shall be an
amount determined in such reasonable manner as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors in good faith, irrespective of any accounting treatment.

(i)            Statement Regarding Adjustments. Whenever the Conversion Price shall be adjusted as provided in paragraph (g) of this Section 4, the
Corporation shall forthwith file, at the principal office of the Corporation, a statement showing in detail the facts requiring such adjustment and the
Conversion Price that shall be in effect after such adjustment, and the Corporation shall also cause a copy of such statement to be sent by mail, first class
postage prepaid, to each holder of Series A Preferred Stock at the address of such holder appearing on the Corporation's records. Where appropriate, such
copy may be given in advance and may be included as part of a notice required to be mailed under the provisions of paragraph (j) of this Section 4.

(j)            Notice to Holders. In the event the Corporation take any action resulting in an adjustment of the Conversion Price as provided in Section
4(g), the Corporation shall give notice to each holder of Series A Preferred Stock, in the manner set forth in paragraph (i) of this Section 4, which notice shall
specify the adjustment of the Conversion Price and the effective date of such adjustment. Failure to give such notice, or any defect therein, shall not affect the
legality or validity of any such action.

(k)            Costs. The Corporation shall pay all documentary, stamp, transfer or other transaction taxes, if any, attributable to the issuance or delivery
of Common Stock upon conversion of, any Series A Preferred Stock; provided that the Corporation shall not be required to pay any taxes which may be
payable in respect of any transfer involved in the issuance or delivery of any certificate for such shares in a name other than that of the holder of the Preferred
Stock in respect of which such shares are being issued.

(l)            Reservation of Shares. So long as any Series A Preferred Stock remain outstanding, the Corporation shall reserve at all times free from
preemptive rights, out of its authorized but unissued Common Stock, solely for the purpose of effecting the conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock,
sufficient Common Stock to provide for the conversion of all outstanding Series A Preferred Stock; and if at any time the number of authorized but unissued
shares of Common Stock shall not be sufficient to effect the conversion of all then outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock, the Corporation will take
such corporate action as may, in the opinion of counsel, be necessary to increase its authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock to such number of
shares as shall be sufficient for such purposes, including, without limitation, engaging in best efforts to obtain the requisite shareholder approval of any
necessary amendment to, as applicable, this Certificate of Determination or the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation, as may be amended in the future.
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5.             Voting Rights.

(a)            In addition to the special voting rights provided in paragraph (b) of this Section 5 below and by applicable law, the holders of Series A
Preferred Stock shall be entitled to vote upon all matters upon which holders of the Common Stock have the right to vote, or, if no Common Stock is issued
and outstanding, all matters upon which holders of Common Stock would have the right to vote as a matter of law. The holders of Series A Preferred Stock
shall also be entitled, notwithstanding any provision hereof, to notice of any shareholders’ meeting in accordance with the Bylaws of the Corporation. The
holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to cast the number of votes equal to the largest number of whole shares of Common Stock into which
such Series A Preferred Stock could be converted pursuant to the provisions of Section 4 hereof at the record date for the determination of the shareholders
entitled to vote on such matters, or, if no such record date is established, at the date such vote is taken or any written consent of shareholders is solicited. Such
votes shall be counted together with votes of Common Stock and all other shares of capital stock having general voting powers, and shall not be counted
separately as a class. In all cases where the holders of Series A Preferred Stock have the right (separately or together with holders of any other series of
Preferred Stock of the Corporation) to vote separately as a class or as a series, such holders shall be entitled to one vote for each such share held by them
respectively. Fractional votes shall not, however, be permitted and any fractional voting rights available on an as-converted basis (after aggregating all shares
into which shares of Series A Preferred Stock held by each holder could be converted) shall be rounded to the nearest whole number (with one-half being
rounded upward).

(b)            The following matters shall require the approval of the holders of a majority of the Series A Preferred Stock then outstanding, voting as a
separate class: (i) creation of any Preferred Stock ranking as Senior Stock to the Series A Preferred Stock with respect to the payment of dividends,
liquidation preferences or voting rights; (ii) repurchase of any shares of Junior Stock except shares issued pursuant to or in connection with a compensation or
incentive plan or agreement approved by the Board of Directors for any officers, directors, employees or consultants of the Corporation; (ii) any sale,
conveyance, or other disposition of all or substantially all the Corporation's property or business, or any liquidation or dissolution of the Corporation, or a
merger into or consolidation with any other corporation (other than a wholly-owned Subsidiary corporation), or any one or series of related transactions in
which more than 50% of the voting power of the Corporation is disposed of, unless upon consummation of such transaction the holders of Series A Preferred
Stock would receive a distribution on account of each share of Series A Preferred Stock an amount of cash or other property or both having a value
(determined in accordance with Section 3(e)) at least equal to the value of any cash, property, or both to which holders of Common Stock would be entitled to
receive, plus the amount of any accrued but unpaid dividends pursuant to Section 2(a); (iii) any adverse change in the rights, preferences and privileges of the
Series A Preferred Stock; or (iv) any amendment of the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation, including this Resolution, or Bylaws that results in any
adverse change in the rights, preferences or privileges of the Series A Preferred Stock; provided, that nothing in this paragraph shall restrict or limit the rights
and powers of the Board of Directors to fix by resolution the rights, preferences, and privileges of, and restrictions and limitations on, stock ranking as Parity
Stock or Junior Stock to Series A Preferred Stock.
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6.            Exclusion of Other Rights. Except as may otherwise be required by law, the Series A Preferred Stock shall not have any rights, preferences,
privileges or restrictions other than those specifically set forth in this resolution and in the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation.

7.            Headings of Subdivisions. The headings of the various subdivisions hereof are for convenience of reference only and shall not affect the
interpretation of any of the provisions hereof.

8.            Severability of Provisions. If any right, preference or limitation of the Series A Preferred Stock set forth in this resolution (as such resolution may be
amended from time to time) is invalid, unlawful or incapable of being enforced by reason of any rule of law or public policy, all other rights, preferences and
limitations set forth in this resolution (as so amended) which can be given effect without the invalid, unlawful or unenforceable right, preference or limitation
shall, nevertheless, remain in full force and effect, and no right, preference or limitation herein set forth shall be deemed dependent upon any other such right,
preference or limitation unless so expressed herein.

9.            Status of Reacquired Shares. Shares of Series A Preferred Stock which have been issued and reacquired in any manner or which shall have been
converted into Common Stock shall (upon compliance with any applicable provisions of the laws of the State of California) have the status of authorized and
unissued Preferred Stock of the Corporation undesignated as to series and may be redesignated as to series and reissued.

10.           Repurchases. With respect to the holders of Series A Preferred Stock, any repurchase by the Corporation of its outstanding Common Stock upon
exercise of a repurchase option contained in an agreement between the Corporation and one or more of its employees, consultants, officers, directors,
employee stock ownership plan trustees, or other persons having a business relationship with the Corporation shall be permissible, and each holder of Series
A Preferred Stock consents to any such repurchases, regardless of any restrictions on such repurchase under Section 502, 503 or 506 of the California
Corporations Code.

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Chief Executive Officer, President, or any Vice President, and the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of this Corporation
be, and they hereby are, authorized and directed to execute, acknowledge, file and record a certificate of determination of preference in accordance with the
foregoing resolution and the provisions of California law."
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III.           The number of shares of Series A Preferred Stock is 300,000. As of the date of this Certificate of Determination, no shares of Series A Preferred
Stock have been issued.

We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the matters set forth in this Certificate are true and correct of our own
knowledge.

Executed at Alameda, California on March 3, 2014.

s/Michael D. West  
Michael D. West, President  
  

s/Judith Segall  
Judith Segall, Secretary  
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Exhibit 31

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Robert W. Peabody, certify that:

1.  I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K/A of BioTime, Inc.;

2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Date:  April 29, 2014

/s/Robert W. Peabody  
Robert W. Peabody  
Chief Financial Officer  



CERTIFICATIONS

I, Michael D. West, certify that:

1.  I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K/A of BioTime, Inc.;

2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Date:  April 29, 2014

/s/Michael D. West  
Michael D. West  
Chief Executive Officer  
 
 



Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K/A of BioTime, Inc. (the “Company”) for the year ended December 31, 2013 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), we, Michael D. West, Chief Executive Officer, and Robert W. Peabody, Chief Financial Officer
of the Company, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1.  The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2.  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: April 29, 2014

/s/Michael D. West  
Michael D. West  
Chief Executive Officer  
  
/s/Robert W. Peabody  
Robert W. Peabody  
Chief Financial Officer  
 
 


